MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

A COMPONENT UNIT OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY MARYLAND

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Dr. Jerry D. Weast
Superintendent of Schools

Mr. Larry A. Bowers
Chief Operating Officer

Dr. Frieda K. Lacey
Deputy Superintendent of Schools

ers

ROCKVILLE, MARYLAND




Montgomery County Public Schools

GUIDING TENETS

CORE VALUES

Every child can learn and succeed

The pursuit of excellence is fundamental and unending

An ethical school system requires fair treatment, honesty, openness, integrity, and respect
A high-quality school system strives to be responsive and accountable to the customer

MISSION

To provide a high-quality, world-class education that ensures success for every student through excellence in
teaching and learning.

VISION

A high-quality education is the fundamental right of every child. All children will receive the respect,
encouragement, and opportunities they need to build the knowledge, skills, and attitudes to be successful,
contributing members of a global society.

SYSTEM GOALS

Ensure success for every student

Provide an effective instructional program

Strengthen productive partnerships for education

Create a positive work environment in a self-renewing organization

Provide high-quality business services that are essential to the educational success of students

BOARD OF EDUCATION ACADEMIC PRIORITIES

Organize and optimize resources for improved academic results

Align rigorous curriculum, delivery of instruction, and assessment for continuous improvement of stu-
dent achievement

Develop, expand, and deliver literacy-based initiatives from prekindergarten through Grade 12

Develop, pilot, and expand improvements in secondary content, instruction, and programs that support
students” active engagement in learning

Use student, staff, school, and system performance data to monitor and improve student achievement

Foster and sustain systems that support and improve employee effectiveness, in partnership with MCPS
employee organizations

Strengthen family-school relationships and continue to expand civic, business, and community partner-
ships that support improved student achievement

CRITICAL QUESTIONS

What do students need to know and be able to do?
How will we know they have learned it?

What will we do when they haven't?

What will we do when they already know it?
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®Mcpsn MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

\_/ www.montgomeryschoolsmd.org MARYLAND

September 26, 2007

Members of the Board of Education:

Maryland State law requires that local education agencies publish at the close of each year a complete set
of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) an.d
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. In compliance with that requirement, we hereby submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) of the Montgomery County Public Schools (MCPS) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

This report has been prepared pursuant to Education Article Section 5-109 of the Annotated Code of
Maryland. The report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of MCPS.
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented
in this report. Management has established a comprehensive internal control framework. Internal
accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are properly safeguarded
and accounted for, and to ensure the reliability of accounting information for preparing financial statements
in conformity with GAAP. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

MCPS financial statements have been audited by Clifton Gunderson LLP, an independent firm of certified
public accountants. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report. MCPS also is required to undergo a federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to
meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. In addition to reporting on the fair presentation of the
financial statements, the single audit places special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements
involved in the administration of federal awards. These reporis are available in MCPS' separately issued
Single Audit Report.

Overview of the Report

The CAFR is divided into three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The introducto.ry_ section
includes this transmittal letter, copies of awards for excellence in financial reporting, a listing of officials, and
the organization chart.

The financial section includes the report of independent auditors, Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A), the basic financial statements, the combining and individual fund financial statements, and
supplementary data. GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overvieV\_l, aqd
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of MD&A. This letter of transmittal is
designed as a complement and should be read in conjunction with MD&A. The MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

The statistical section includes selected financial, demographic, and operating information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis.

Office of the Superintendent of Schools

850 Hungerford Drive, Room 122 # Rockville, Maryland 20850 ¢ 301-279-3381
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Members of the Board of Education

MCPS Profile

The Board of Education of Montgomery County is the elected body, corporate and politic, established under
Maryland law to provide public education in kindergarten through twelfth grade to children residing within the
borders of Montgomery County, Maryland. The Board is composed of five district members, two at-large
members, and one student member elected for a one-year term. The Board determines educational policy
and employs a superintendent of schools to administer the school system. Primary funding is provided by
Montgomery County from its general revenues. Funds also are received from state and federal sources for
general school aid and specific purpose grants. The budget is approved by the Montgomery County
Council. The Board of Education has no power to levy and collect taxes or increase the budget. Because
of the relationship with Montgomery County, MCPS is considered a component unit of the county
government, as defined by GAAP for governmental entities.

The general purpose financial statements and supplementary data in this report include all funds
administered by MCPS in conjunction with its mission of providing elementary and secondary public
education. The reporting entity also includes a component unit of MCPS, the MCPS Educational
Foundation, Inc. The Educational Foundation is legally separate from MCPS but included in the MCPS
reporting entity because of the significance of its financial relationship with MCPS and because MCPS is
considered financially accountable for the Foundation.

Factors Effecting Financial Condition

Local economy. MCPS receives approximately 73 percent of its operating budget from Montgomery
County. The economic condition and outlook of the county, therefore, play substantial roles in the economic
condition of MCPS.

For the Washington Metropolitan Area, most indicators reflect positive performance for the region's
economy, with increases in employment and continued price stability. According to the Center for Regional
Analysis, the region’s economy extended its three-year expansion and continued to generate jobs despite
rising energy prices and a slowdown in new home construction. However, the pace of growth slowed over
the past year. The region added approximately 45,000 new jobs over the past year. The Washington
Coincident Index, a measure of the current state of the metropolitan economy, increased by 0.75 percent
during FY 2007. The Washington Leading Index increased by 0.82 percent in FY 2007, suggesting
continued moderate growth in the region’s economic expansion in the next six to eight months. Both the
region’s and the county’s economies are expected to outperform the nation’s economy due to the large
presence of the federal government in the area. The Washington Metropolitan Area continues to have one
of the lowest unemployment rates in the country at 2.9 percent. The federal government comprises
approximately 30 percent of the county’s economy.

Montgomery County’s economy has experienced mixed economic activity during the last year. Central to
the county’'s mixed performance were declines in the growth of residential construction and a decline in
housing sales. The value of new residential construction has decreased nearly 28 percent this year, but the
number of residential building permits issued increased by 49 percent. The number of residential sales
declined during the year by 21.4 percent. Although the increase in home prices has moderated, average
home prices in the county have increased by approximately 2.0 percent this year, which will benefit the
county’s revenue outlook through higher residential property assessments.

The county experienced improvements in a number of economic indicators, but the pace of growth slowed.
The labor market grew by 1.1 percent over the last year. The county’s unemployment rate of 3.2 percent is
one of the lowest in the state, a full percentage point below the state average.

Long-term financial planning. Six-year budget projections are updated each year, used as a starting point
for discussion and planning, and revised each year to reflect trends and factors affecting enroliment.
Preliminary projections for FY 2008 through FY 2013 indicate an annual increase for major known
commitments of $133.0 million for FY 2009 (including the result of already negotiated collective bargaining
agreements), and average projected increases of more than $100 million for known commitments for
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Members of the Board of Education

FY 2010 through FY 2013. Each 1 percent salary increase will add $14.7 million in
FY 2009. These projections do not include funds to address the initiatives planned in the MCPS strategic
plan, Our Call to Action: Pursuit of Excellence, to raise the bar and close the achievement gap between
ethnic groups.

Negotiated agreements. In February 2007, the Board of Education reached agreement with all three
bargaining units on new three-year contracts. All of these contracts will expire on June 30, 2010. The
salary agreement calls for 4.8 percent increases effective July 1, 2007, 5.0 percent increases effective
July 1, 2008, and 5.3 percent increases effective July 1, 2009, The agreements do not provide for
negotiations on any of the terms of the Agreements during the covered period of time.

During fall 2008, the three unions participated in joint negotiations regarding benefits for all employees.
These negotiations resulted in agreement on benefits terms for three years, through FY 2010.

During the fall of 2008, the Board of Education approved the establishment of a new bargaining unit of
noncertificated supervisory employees. As a result, there were negotiations concerning the composition of
the new unit and preparations for negotiations with the exclusive representative of the new unit. The
exclusive representative was approved by the Board of Education on June 12, 2007. As a result,
negotiations will occur with this employee organization during the fall of 2007,

Enrollment. MCPS has experienced rapid enroliment growth for more than 20 years. However, total
enrollment has stabilized. MCPS enrollment was 137,798 students in FY 2007, 1,589 less than in FY
2006. The September 30, 2007, enroliment is projected to be 137,007. To relieve overcrowding and
accommodate full-day kindergarten classes in all elementary schools, MCPS added 89 classrooms to six
existing schools in FY 2007, and opened four new elementary schools and a high school. MCPS will add
another 64 classrooms to three existing schools in FY 2008 and open one elementary school.

Cash management program. MCPS maintains a cash management program for the purpose of achieving
maximum financial return on available funds. Temporarily idle cash is invested on a daily basis in a money
market mutual fund and in fully collateralized repurchase agreements. Investment earnings were
$1,925,324 in FY 2007. Excess cash during the year is invested by the Montgomery County Government
for MCPS. MCPS does not benefit directly from the investment earnings derived from the county's cash
management and investment programs.

Risk Management. Page 80 in the statistical section of this report presents the Montgomery County and
Board of Education's Self-Insurance Fund. This fund was established in 1954 so that properties of the
county, including schools, could be partially self-insured for fire insurance purposes. Effective July 1, 1978,
this fund was merged into an expanded self-insurance program to cover workers' compensation, general
liability, and boiler and motor vehicle risks. It appears that, based upon experience, this fund is mutually
beneficial for all participating agencies. Additional information on MCPS’ risk management activity can be
found in note 10 of the notes to the financial statements.

Accomplishments and Awards

SAT scores. The systemwide average SAT score in FY 2006 was 1624, with 79.0 percent of seniors taking
the test. The average score was 113 points above the national average and 126 points above the Maryland
state average. The average included a mathematics score of 552, a critical reading score of 537, and a
writing score averaging 535. SAT scores continue to show a significant gap between the average scores of
White and Asian students and those of African American and Hispanic students.

Academic progress., Students at all levels are demonstrating improved academic achievement. In 20086,
45 percent of the school system'’s seniors scored a 3 or higher on Advanced Placement tests—three times
the national average and double the average in Maryland. African American and Hispanic seniors in MCPS
performed significantly better than their peers nationwide on Advanced Placement exams, with more African
American students and Hispanic students scoring a 3 or better than the national average for all students.
Sixty-nine percent of all MCPS high school students enrolled in Advanced Placement and Honors classes.
Record numbers of kindergarten students are reading, 88 percent in 2006, up from 39 percent in 2001,
eliminating the achievement gap between White and Asian American students and their African American
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Members of the Board of Education

and Hispanic peers in this grade. Forty-nine percent of Grade 8 students successfully completed Algebra 1
in 20086, twice the national average.

Financial Reporting Awards, The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to MCPS for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

For 26 consecutive years, MCPS has received the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO)
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting. This award, valid for one year, is granted only after an
intensive review of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report by an expert panel of certified public
accountants and practicing school business officials. MCPS plans to submit the 2007 comprehensive
annual financial report to ASBO and believes the report continues to meet ASBO certificate program
requirements.

Acknowledgements
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m Clifton
Gunderson 1LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Education
of Montgomery County, Maryland
Rockville, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Montgomery County Public Schools, a component unit
of Montgomery County, Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007 which collectively
comprise Montgomery County Public Schools’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Montgomery County Public
Schools’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Montgomery County Public Schools as of June 30, 2007, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 26, 2007 on our consideration of Montgomery County Public Schools’ internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Mambar of

1 2 International

Offices in 15 states and Washington, DC



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Schedule of Funding Progress for Single
Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans as referenced in the table of contents are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Montgomery County Public Schools’ basic financial statements. The
introductory section, supplementary information to the financial statements and the statistical
section as listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary
information to the financial statements has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section
and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%WAL/A

Baltimore, Maryland
September 26, 2007
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Montgomery County Public Schools
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Montgomery County Public Schools (MCPS) Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of MCPS
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Readers are encouraged to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information presented in the transmittal letter,
which can be found on pages 1-4 of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of MCPS exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2007, by $1,551.2 million,
which represents its net assets.

e  MCPS’ net assets increased during the year by $135.9 million.
97 percent of capital asset additions were directed toward instructional facilities,
including the modernization of six schools and the opening/reopening of one high
school and four elementary schools.

o MCPS successfully realized its commitment to the Montgomery County Council to
generate $7.3 million in FY 2007 savings to be used to fund the FY 2008 operating
budget.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the MCPS financial
statements. MCPS’ basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) district-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
MCPS’ finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of MCPS’ asscts and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of MCPS is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how MCPS’ net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., depreciation and earned but unused annual leave).

Both of the district-wide financial statements distinguish functions of MCPS that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
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and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of MCPS include most of the
district’s basic services, such as regular and special education, transportation, and administration.
The business-type activities of MCPS include food services and real estate management
operations, field trip services, and entrepreneurial activities.

The district-wide financial statements include not only MCPS itself (known as the primary
government), but also the MCPS Educational Foundation, Inc. for which MCPS is financially
accountable. Financial information for the component unit is reported separately from the
financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The district-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25-27 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. MCPS, like
other governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of MCPS can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
district-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the district-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

MCPS maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the capital projects fund,
both of which are considered to be major funds, and the special revenue fund.

MCPS adopts annual appropriated budgets for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for the governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with these
budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-32 of this report.

Proprietary funds. MCPS maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the district-wide
financial statements. MCPS uses enterprise funds to account for its food services, real estate
management, field trips, and entrepreneurial activities. Internal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among MCPS’ various functions. MCPS

15



uses an internal service fund to account for its employee health benefit plan costs. Because this
plan predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been
included within governmental activities.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the district-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for
the food services operation which is considered to be a major fund of MCPS. Data for the other
three proprietary funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary
fund financial statements. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor proprietary funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33-35 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. MCPS is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the
MCPS Retirement and Pension Plan and the student activities funds. MCPS is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by
those to whom the assets belong. MCPS excludes these activities from the district-wide financial
statements because it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-37 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the district-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 39-57 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
proprietary funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 60-69 of this
report.

Montgomery County Public Schools Net Assets
(Amounts expressed in millions)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current and other assets $ 1676 $ 1546 $ (05 $ (04 § 1671 $ 154.2
Capital assets 1661.5 1,534.1 5.7 5.6 1,667.2 1,539.7

Total assets 1,829.1 1,688.7 5.2 5.2 1,834.3 1,693.9
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1111 107.4 1.6 1.7 112.7 109.1
Other liabilities 168.4 167.7 2.0 1.8 170.4 169.5

Total! liabilities 279.5 275.1 3.6 35 283.1 278.6
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 1,635.1 1,509.7 5.2 5.1 1,640.3 1,514.8
Unrestricted (85.5) (96.1) (3.6) (3.4) (89.1) (99.5)

Total net assets $ 1,549.6 $ 14136 $ 16 § 1.7 $ 15512 § 1,415.3
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District-wide Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. MCPS' net
assets, the amount by which assets exceed liabilities, increased $135.9 million to $1,551.2
million. Most of the increase came from governmental activities, which increased by $136.0
million to $1,549.6 million. The largest portion of net assets reflects MCPS' investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, school buildings, buses, and equipment), less any related outstanding
debt used by MCPS to acquire those assets. Investment in capital assets, net of related debt for
governmental activities increased $125.4 million to $1,635.1 million. These assets are used by
MCPS in its instructional programs, consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending.

Montgomery County and the State of Maryland fund M CPS school construction projects through
the issuance of general obligation bonds. These bonds are not reflected in MCPS' investment in
capital assets, as the resources needed to repay these bonds must be provided by Montgomery
County and the State.

Unrestricted net assets deficit decreased $10.4 million to a $89.1 million deficit at June 30, 2007.
The increase in unrestricted net assets is primarily attributed to a $12.8 million increase in liquid
assets, cash and short-term investments.

The deficit in unrestricted net assets arises from the district’s funding policies for its noncurrent
liabilities, especially for compensated absences. The fiscal condition of MCPS remains strong,
as intergovernmental revenues continue to grow sufficiently to meets its fiscal obligations and to
fund its current operations.

Revenues by Sour ce - Governmental Activities

Federal government
State of Maryland 5?5% Otheor ?,S/l:rCS

22.4%

Montgomery County
73.6%

Governmental activities. Total revenues for MCPS' governmental activities increased $119.6
million (6.0 percent). Intergovernmental revenues increased $106.6 million (5.7 percent), and
operating program revenues increased $2.2 million (2.7 percent). Intergovernmental revenues
from Montgomery County increased $50.2 million (3.4 percent) as required to fund the operating
and capital budgets. Intergovernmental revenue from the State of Maryland increased $56.9
million (13.8 percent), related principally to an increase of $35.0 million in the unrestricted
Bridge to Excellence funding and an increase of $14.7 million in school construction funding.
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Total expenses increased $142.8 million (7.8 percent) to $1,982.6 million. In 2007, instructional
programs expenses accounted for 82.1 percent and support services accounted for 17.9 percent of
total governmental activities expenses. Instruction expenses increased $112.8 million (7.4
percent) to $1,628.6 million. Regular instruction increased $72.3 million (6.6 percent). There
was a proportionately greater increase of 10.0 percent in special education, related to an increase
in special education enrollment of 243 students.

Support services expenses increased $30.0 million (9.3 percent) to $354.0 million. Plant
operations expenses increased 8.4 percent due to increases in utility costs. Maintenance
expenses increased 14.1 percent due to an increase in capital maintenance activity.
Administration increased 15.4 percent due to the cost for implementation of a new financial
management system.

Mantgomery County Public Schools Changes in Net Assets
(Amounts expressed in millions)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 52 $ 52 $ 276 $ 281 $ 328 $ 333
Operating grants and contributions 83.5 81.3 18.8 17.3 102.3 98.6
Capital grants and contributions 52.3 41.8 0.6 0.3 52.9 421
General revenues:
Intergovernmental 1,976.6 1,870.0 1,976.6 1,870.0
Other 1.0 0.7 0.9 0.7 1.9 1.4
Total revenues 2,118.6 1,999.0 47.9 46.4 2,166.5 2,045.4
Expenses:

Regular instruction 1,160.9 1,088.6 1,160.9 1,088.6
Special education 293.6 266.9 293.6 266.9
School administration 160.2 146.8 160.2 146.8
Student personnel services 13.9 134 139 134
Health services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Student transportation 100.9 96.8 100.9 96.8
Operation of plant 130.3 120.2 130.3 120.2
Maintenance of plant 55.8 48.9 55.8 48.9
Administration 63.1 54.7 63.1 54.7
Community services 2.2 2.1 2.2 21
Interest on capital leases 1.7 1.4 1.7 1.4
Food services 421 40.7 42.1 40.7
Adult education 0.0 1.5 0.0 1.5
Real estate management 29 21 29 2.1
Field trips 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6
Entrepreneurial activities 14 1.3 1.4 1.3
Total expenses 1,982.6 1,839.8 48.0 47.2 2,030.6 1,887.0
Increase (decrease) in net assets 136.0 159.2 (0.1) {0.8) 135.9 158.4
Net Assets - beginning 1,413.6 1,254.4 1.7 25 1,415.3 1,256.9
Net Assets - ending $ 15496 $ 14136 $ 16 § 1.7 § 15512 § 14153
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased MCPS’ net assets by $0.1 million.
Revenues from the sale of food increased $0.7 million (3.3 percent), and non-operating revenues
increased $1.7 million (9.6 percent). Nonoperating revenues were buoyed by increases in
investment income (26.2 percent) and State grants (26.9 percent). The number of reimbursable
meals increased 396,000 (3.3 percent) to 12,521,000 during the year. Food services operating
expenses increased $1.4 million (3.4 percent). Salary expenses increased 1.1 million (7.1
percent) due in part to personnel added to staff five additional cafeterias. Food costs decreased
0.2 million (2.1 percent) due to a reduction in grocery, meat and poultry prices.

Non-major enterprise funds net assets decreased $0.3 million, due primarily to an operating loss
of $0.3 million in the Real Estate Management Fund.

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

State of Maryland

Montgomery County > 1%
. 0

1.4%

Federal government
37.0%

User fees

57.5% Earnings on investments
2.1%

Financial Analysis of MCPS’ Funds

MCPS uses fund accounting to ensure accountability and to demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions.

Governmental funds. The focus of MCPS’ governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing MCPS’ financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, MCPS’ governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balance of $8.6 million, an increase of $3.0 million from the prior year. The unreserved,
undesignated fund deficit of $9.4 million was offset by reserved fund balance of $18.0 million.
Reserved fund balance is unavailable for new spending because it has already been reserved to
liquidate prior period commitments.
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The general fund is the principal operating fund of MCPS. At June 30, 2007, unreserved,
undesignated fund balance was $4.9 million and total fund balance was $22.1 million.
Unreserved, undesignated fund balance increased $7.9 million, resulting primarily from a
decrease in reserved fund balance necessary to cover a decrease of $3.6 million in encumbrances
outstanding at June 30, 2007 and an excess of revenue and other financing sources over expenses
of $3.2 million.

Capital projects fund deficit increased by $0.2 million during 2007 to a deficit of $13.7 million at
June 30, 2007. The deficit reflects school construction funding reversions by the State occurring
after the anticipated State funds had been expended. The deficit will be eliminated as
Montgomery County adjusts revenue sources from state to local funding for the affected projects.

Program Revenues and Expenses - Major Fund
Business-type Activities

@ Program
revenues

O Expenses

s Food services
o

Program Revenues and Expenses - Non-Major Fund
Business-type Activities

Entrepreneurial activities

@ Program
revenues

O Expenses

Field trips

Real estate management

&

v

o
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Proprietary funds. MCPS’ proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
district-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of those
funds have already been addressed within the discussion of business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final amended budget for fiscal year 2007 was $23.0 million higher than the original budget.
The increases were a result of $15.3 million in unexpended restricted program grants that carried
forward to 2007, and $7.7 million in supplemental appropriations — $7.3 million for restricted
program grants received during the year and $0.4 million for unrestricted programs.

Actual budgetary fund balance increased by $8.4 million. The increase in fund balance resulted
from a plan that generated $7.3 million in current year savings, to be applied toward funding the
2008 operating budget.

Actual revenues were $12.9 million under budget for the year. Restricted revenues were $16.0
million under budget, of which $1.7 million comprised estimated restricted grants that did not
materialize, 0.1 million in grant authorizations expiring June 30, 2007, and $14.2 million in
unrealized revenue for grants that carried forward into 2008.

Unrestricted revenues were $3.1 million above budget. Revenues above budget included tuition
and fees ($0.8 million) and State non formula-based grants ($1.5 million).

Actual expenditures were $25.1 million under budget. Restricted expenditures were $16.0
million less than the budget, which consisted of $14.2 million in unspent funds for grants that
carry forward into 2008, $1.7 million in estimated restricted grants that did not materialize, and
$0.1 million in grant authorizations expiring June 30, 2007.

Unrestricted expenditures were $9.1 million under budget, due to a savings plan implemented
during the year that, in agreement with the Montgomery County Council, would generate
internal savings for use in funding 2008 budget initiatives.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. Capital assets include land and site improvements, schools and administrative
buildings, school buses, and other vehicles and equipment. At June 30, 2007, MCPS’ investment
in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities amounts to $1,667.2 million,
net of accumulated depreciation. This amount represents a net increase of $127.4 million, or 8.3
percent from last year. The net value of buildings increased $145.7 million and construction in
progress decreased $42.7 million.
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Montgomery County Public Schools Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation)
(amounts expressed in millions)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Land $ 68.1 $ 680 % - $ - $ 681 $ 680
Buildings 1,230.0 1,084.3 - - 1,230.0 1,084.3
Site improvements 122.8 103.5 - - 122.8 103.5
Vehicle and equipment 64.0 68.9 5.7 5.6 69.7 64.5
Construction in progress 176.6 219.3 - - 176.6 219.3
Total $ 16615 $ 15340 % 57 § 5.6 $1,667.2 $ 1,639.6

To relieve overcrowding, reduce the number of relocatable classrooms, and accommodate full-
day kindergarten, in FY 2007, MCPS added 89 classrooms to six existing schools and
opened/reopened one high school and four elementary schools, resulting in a decrease of 112
relocatable classrooms. In FY 2008, MCPS will add 64 classrooms to three existing schools and
a new elementary school that will eliminate 98 relocatable classrooms.

Additional information about capital assets can be found in note 6 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt. At June 30, 2007, MCPS had $45.9 million in capital leases outstanding.
MCPS acquires school buses, instructional computers and furniture, other vehicles, and heavy
equipment through a master lease agreement with a financial institution. New capital leases for
school buses, instructional computers, and other equipment amounted to $25.0 million during
2007. Principal payments on existing capital leases were $24.2 million during the current year.

Additional information on MCPS’ long-term debt can be found in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

Factors Bearing on MCPS’ Future

The transmittal letter presents certain information on the local economy and long-term financial
planning, enrollment, and negotiated agreement issues affecting MCPS. There are four
additional initiatives that significantly impact MCPS.

Post-employment Healthcare Benefits. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans (OPEB) in June 2004. The Statement is
effective in FY 2008 for MCPS. The Statement establishes standards for the measurement,
recognition and reporting of OPEB expenditures and related liabilities. MCPS currently
recognizes and funds the cost of post-employment healthcare for its retirees on a pay-as-you-go
basis. The Statement will require MCPS to recognize an expenditure for OPEB during the
period of active service for its employees, and, to the extent not currently funded, to recognize a
liability for unfunded OPEB costs.
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Implementation of Statement No. 45 is expected to have a substantial impact on the MCPS
financial statements. In preparation for the July 1, 2007 implementation date, MCPS has
participated with the county and other county agencies for the purpose of developing a common
approach toward reporting and funding OPEB that will be acceptable to the Montgomery County
Council, the funding authority for MCPS.

No Child Left Behind. In 2002 the United States Congress approved the No Child Left Behind
(NCLB) Act. This marked the most fundamental revision of federal education legislation since
the adoption of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) in 1965. The new law
calls for rigorous standards in all states and compulsory testing of students in grades 3 through 8
and grade 10. MCPS has aligned its plans and outcome measures with the standards of NCLB
with the goal of having all schools meet Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) targets and having all
teachers meet “highly qualified” standards as established by the State of Maryland.

Bridge to Excellence. The 2002 Maryland General Assembly adopted ground-breaking
legislation to reform the system of educational funding in the state. The Bridge to Excellence
Act (S. B. 856) provides an additional $1.3 billion statewide to assure the adequacy of
educational resources while redirecting resources more equitably to meet the needs of students
with disabilities, limited English proficient students, and students impacted by poverty. In 2007,
MCPS received an increase of $31.4 million as a result of this legislation. When fully
implemented in FY 2008, Montgomery County can expect an additional $54.7 million in state
resources,

Master Plan. In accordance with the mandates of this law, MCPS has submitted to the
Maryland State Department of Education (MSDE) a five-year Master Plan to indicate how its
schools will meet established goals for student achievement. The strategic plan for the school
system, Our Call to Action: Pursuit of Excellence, forms the basis of the Master Plan and was
reviewed extensively by community leaders and local officials. The Master Plan includes
specific plans for the implementation of the requirements of NCLB. The MSDE approved the
five-year Master Plan, and MCPS has submitted the annual required updates to the plan.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of MCPS’ finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, Montgomery County Public
Schools, 7361 Calhoun Place, Suite 190, Rockville, Maryland 20855.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2007

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-Type Educational
Activities Activities Total Foundation
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 13,409,882 $ 961,739 14,371,621 $
Cash and cash equivalents 5,223,970 5,223,970 2,441
investments - cash equivalents 36,804,128 36,804,128
Investments 5,119,755
Accounts receivable:
Monigomery County 63,689,443 202,135 63,891,578
State of Maryland 14,328,510 52,917 14,381,427
Federal government 10,691,922 803,536 11,495,458
Other 9,221,492 727,113 9,948,605
Due from fiduciary funds 1,308,774 1,308,774
Due from component unit 576,063 576,063
Internal balances 9,678,812 (9.678,812) -
Inventories 6,611,321 1,252,539 7,863,860
Prepaids 776,203 776,203
Due from employees 554,897 554,897
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land and site improvements 190,838,875 190,838,875
Buildings and additions 1,230,021,332 4,458 1,230,025,790
Construction in progress 176,607,832 176,607,832
Vehicles and equipment 64,007,579 5,685,220 69,692,799
Total assets 1,829,127,065 5,234,815 1,834,361,880 5,122,196
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 138,719,447 297,015 139,017,362
Due to primary government 576,063
Unearned revenue 2,828,611 1,636,236 4,364,847
Naoncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 26,883,471 239,691 27,123,162
Due in more than one year 111,056,095 1,573,821 112,629,918
Total liabilities 279,487,624 3,647,663 283,135,287 576,063
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,635,087,567 5,215,924 1,640,303,491
Restricted for:
Instructional Programs, Expendable 747,540
Scholarships, Non-Expendable 821,862
Unrestricted (85,448,126) (3,628,772) (89,076,898) 2,976,731
Total net assets $ 1,649,639,441 $ 1,587,152 $1,551,226,593 3 4,546,133

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Instruction:
Regular instruction $1,160,855,790 § 4,885206 $ 47,981,144 § 18,272,359
Special education 293,576,065 92,430 26,835,309
School administration 160,163,136 3,731,020
Student personnel services 13,944,662 1,095,801
Health services 53,540
Total instruction 1,628,593,193 4,977,636 79,643,274 18,272,359
Support services:
Student transportation 100,930,995 272,182 172,054 159,243
Operation of plant 130,303,214 2,000 6,155,844
Maintenance of plant 55,832,785 1,383,170 18,064,527
Administration 63,053,976 404,710 9,621,841
Community services 2,176,810 1,846,277
Interest on capital leases 1,742,075
Total support services 354,039,955 272,182 3,808,211 34,001,455
Tota!l governmental activities 1,982,633,148 5,249,818 83,451,485 52 273,814
Business-type activities:
Food services 42,161,738 22,008,945 18,798,444 655,145
Adult education (48,642)
Real estate management 2,926,351 2,625,031
Field trips 1,629,297 1,543,101
Entrepreneurial activities 1,376,930 1,436,778
Total business-type activities 48,045,674 27,613,855 18,798,444 655,145
Total primary government $2,030,678,822 $ 32863673 $ 102,249,929 § 52,928,959
Component Unit:
Educational Foundation 5 911,176 $ - S 1,374.479 § -

General revenues:

Unrestricted intergovernmental:
Montgomery County
State of Maryland
Federal government
Investment earnings

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-Type Educational
Activities Activities Total Foundation
$ (1,089,717,081) § - $ (1,089,717,081) $ -
(266,648,326) (266,648,326)
(156,432,116) (156,432,116)
(12,848,861) (12,848,861)
(53,540) (53,540)
(1,525,699,924) - (1,525,699,924) -
(100,327,516) (100,327,516)
(124,145,370) {124,145,370)
(36,385,088) (36,385,088)
(53,027,425) (53,027,425)
(330,633) (330,633)
(1,742,075} (1,742,075)
(315,958,107) - (315,958,107) -
(1,841,658,031) - {1,841,658,031) -
(699,204) (699,204)
48,642 48,642
(301,320) (301,320)
(86,196) (86,196)
59,848 59,848
- (978,230) (978,230 -
(1,841,658,031) {978,230) (1,842,636,261) -
463,303
1,507,402,033 1,507,402,033

468,650,022 468,650,022
539,841 539,841
929,696 995,628 1,925,324
127,762 (127,762) o
1,977,649,354 867,866 1,978,517,220 -
135,991,323 (110,364) 135,880,959 463,303
1,413,648,118 1,697,516 1,415,345,634 4,082,830
$ 1549639441 § 1,587,152 $ 1,551,226,593 § 4,546,133
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2007

Other
Governmental Total
Capital Fund - Governmental
General Projects Special Revenue Funds
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 13,400,882 § - 3 - % 13,409,882
Accounts receivable:
Montgomery County 50,712,622 11,593,821 1,383,000 63,689,443
State of Maryland 6,016,560 8,311,950 14,328,510
Federal government 10,691,922 10,691,922
Other 8,081,957 287,179 8,369,136
Due from other funds 21,766,890 21,766,890
Due from fiduciary funds 1,308,774 1,308,774
Due from component unit 576,063 576,063
inventories 6,611,321 6,611,321
Prepaids 52,416 723,787 776,203
Due from employees 554,897 554,897
Total assets $ 119,783,304 $ 20,916,737 $ 1,383,000 $ 142,083,041
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liahilities:
Accounts payable $ 16,173,383 § 11,781,046 $ 31390 §  27,985819
Retainage payable 11,903,420 11,903,420
Accrued salaries and withholdings 71,442,043 71,442,043
Due to other funds 2,290,870 10,901,080 1,186,998 14,378,948
Unearned revenue 2,828,611 2,828,611
Compensated absences 4,928,192 4,928,192
Total liabilities 97,663,099 34,585,546 1,218,388 133,467,033
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 10,577,103 17,862 10,594,965
Inventories 6,611,321 6,611,321
Prepaids 52,416 723,787 776,203
Unreserved, undesignated (deficit), reported in:
General Fund 4,879,365 4,879,365
Capital Projects Fund {14,392,596) (14,392,596)
Special Revenue Fund 146,750 146,750
Total unreserved, undesignated (deficit) 4,879,365 (14,392,596) 146,750 (9,366,481)
Total fund balances 22,120,205 (13,668,809) 164,612 8,616,008
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 119,783,304 $ 20916,737 § 1,383,000 3 142,083,041

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BAIANCE SHEET
WITH THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2007

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 8,616,008

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental
funds.
The cost of capital assets is $ 2,368,751,237
Accumulated depreciation is (707,275,619)

1,661,475,618
An internal service fund is used to account for the employee health
benefit plan costs. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
fund are included with govemmental activities. 12,559,189

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term
liabilities at year end consist of:

Capital leases payable (45,400,158)
Compensated absences (82,917,764)
Net pension obligation (4,036,612)
Technology investment loans (656,840)
(133,011,374)
Total net assets - governmental activities $  1,549,639,441

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Other
Governmental Total
Capital Fund - Governmental
General Projects Special Revenue Funds

Revenues:
Montgomery County
State of Maryland
Federal government
Other sources

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Administration
Mid-level administration
Instructional salarles and wages
Instructional texthooks and supplies
Other instructional costs
Special education
Student personnel services
Health services
Student transportation
Operation of plant
Maintenance of plant
Fixed charges
Community services

Debt service:
Capital lease principal
Capital lease interest

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Capital lease financing
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

Fund bafances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$ 1,381522441  $177,124,605 § - $ 1,558,647,046
432,360,210 42,590,806 474,951,016
75,177,789 75,177,789
8,164,103 1,383,000 9,547,103
1,897,224,543 219,715,411 1,383,000 2,118,322,954
43,163,115 43,163,115
118,650,653 118,650,653
760,940,050 760,940,050
36,680,260 36,680,260
18,687,106 18,687,106
227,023,151 227,023,151
10,264,691 10,264,691
44,821 44,821
81,298,925 81,298,925
102,598,137 102,598,137
30,815,334 30,815,334
463,825,658 463,825,658
437,421 1,313,099 1,750,520
12,333,146 11,664,331 23,997,477
1,089,932 652,143 1,742,075
218,839,987 218,839,987

1,907,852,400 231,156,461 1,313,099 2,140,321,960
(10,627,857) (11,441,050} 69,901 (21,999,008)
13,677.798 11,244,503 24,922,301
127,762 127,762
13,805,560 11,244,503 R 25,050,063
3,177,703 (196,547) 69,901 3,051,057
18,942,502 (13,472,262) 94,711 5,564,951

$ 22120205  $ (13,668,809) $ 164612 $ 8,616,008

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES WITH THE DISTRICT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 3,051,057
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental funds as
expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are shown in the statement
of net assets and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation expense
in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which capital outlays for capital project
assets ($218,839,987 less non-capitalized items of $52,428,479) plus capital outlays for
general fund assets ($16,552,030) exceed depreciation expense ($55,435,454) in the
current period, 127,528,084

The net effect of various miscellanecus transactions involving capital assets, such as the
the loss on disposal of capital assets and the donation of land from developers is to
decrease net assets. (123,260)

Some of the capital assets and assets below the capitalization threshold acquired this year were
financed with capital leases. The amount financed by the leases is reported in the governmental
funds as a source of financing. On the other hand, the capital leases are not revenues in the
statement of aclivities, but rather constitute long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Also, expenditures for principal repayment of capital leases are measured by the amount of
financial resources used by governmental funds and have no effect on net assets. (924,824)

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, such as compensated absences,
are measured by the amounts accrued during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources expended. (3.452,055)

An internal service fund is used to charge the costs of the employee benefit plan to the individual
funds. The net expense of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities in
the statement of activities. 9,912,321

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 135,991,323

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance with
Budgeted Amounis Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Montgomery County $ 1,380,770,860 $ 1,381,531,638 $ 1,381522441 § (9,197)
State of Maryland 335,308,368 339,980,926 340,719,891 738,965
Federal government 65,014,851 86,548,930 75,177,789 (11,371,141)
Other sources 14,305,518 10,445,758 8,164,103 (2,281,655)
Total revenues 1,795,489,697 1,818,507,252 1,8056,584,224 (12,923,028)
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Current:
Administration 38,304,023 38,641,365 38,150,355 491,010
Mid-level administration 118,358,940 120,311,049 119,136,646 1,174,403
Instructional salaries and wages 763,157,963 772,092,178 759,503,295 12,588,883
Instructional textbooks and supplies 35,602,652 38,145,939 36,847,769 1,298,170
Other instructional costs 19,453,543 24,348,723 19,083,714 4,365,009
Special education 227,810,034 227,823,184 225,898,273 1,924,911
Student personnel services 10,431,421 10,453,033 10,264,500 188,533
Health services 46,138 46,138 44 821 1,317
Student fransportation 79,785,330 79,955,827 78,698,314 957,513
Operation of plant 104,113,457 104,564,339 104,404,495 159,844
Maintenance of plant 30,660,825 31,020,996 30,822,376 198,620
Fixed charges 371,511,803 374,180,315 372,844,597 1,335,718
Community services 208,495 879,093 434,916 444,177
Total expenditures and encumbrances 1,799,444,524 1,822,462,17% 1,797,334,071 25,128,108
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and encumbrances (3,954,927) (3,954,927) 8,250,153 12,205,080
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 127,762 127,762
Total other financing sources - - 127,762 127,762
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing

sources over expenditures and encumbrances (3,954,927) (3,954,927) 8,377,915 12,332,842
Fund balance - beginning 3,954,927 3,054,927 7,343,380 3,388,453
Fund balance - ending 3 - $ - % 15,721,205  § 15,721,295

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Food Enterprise Internal
Services Funds Total Service Fund
Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ - $ 961,739 % 961,739 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents 5,223,970 5,223,970
Investments - cash equivalents 36,804,128
Accounts receivable:
Montgomery County 202,135 202,135
State of Maryland 52,917 52,917
Federal government 803,536 803,536
Other 149,400 577,713 727,113 852,356
Due from other funds 2,290,870
Inventories 1,232,289 20,250 1,252,539
Total current assets 7,462,112 1,761,837 9,223,949 38,847,354
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 4,458 4,458
Machinery and equipment 5,641,070 44,150 5,685,220
Total noncurrent assets 5,641,070 48,608 5,689,678 -
Total assets 13,103,182 1,810,445 14,913,627 39,947,354
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 103,739 177,541 281,280 72,755
Cilaims payable 24,815,807
Accrued interest payable 16,635 16,635
Due to employees, advance premium withholdings 2,499,603
Due to other funds 8,531,138 1,147,674 9,678,812
Unearned revenue 1,399,081 137,155 1,636,236
Capital leases - current 207,103 17,636 224,739
Compensated absences - current 14,952 14,952
Total current liabilities 10,272,648 1,480,006 11,752,654 27,388,165
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital leases payable 240,770 18,294 259,064
Compensated absences 1,102,224 212,533 1,314,757
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,342,994 230,827 1,573,821 -
Total liabilities 11,615,642 1,710,833 13,326,475 27,388,165
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,203,246 12,678 5,215,924
Unrestricted (3,715,706) 86,934 (3,628,772) 12,559,189
Total net assets $ 1,487,540 $ 99,612 $ 1,587,152 $ 12,559,189

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmentat
Other Activities -
Food Enterprise internal
Services Funds Total Service Fund
Operating revenues:

Sale of food $ 22,008,945 $ - $ 22008945 § -

Tuition and fees 5,604,910 5,604,910

Empioyer's contributions 211,877,008

Members' contributions 46,384,810
Total operating revenues 22,008,945 5,604,910 27,613,855 258,261,818

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 16,592,904 2,071,230 18,664,134

Contracted services 743,001 181,923 929,924

Supplies and materials 2,034,851 905,091 2,939,942

Food purchases 10,185,437 10,185,437

USDA commodities 2,063,431 2,063,431

Other charges 9,436,006 2,706,248 12,142,254 1,182,492

Depreciation and amortization 1,084,473 18,444 1,103,917

Benefits paid to plan members 176,737,381

Premiums paid to insurance companies 73,698,872
Total operating expenses 42,145,103 5,883,936 48,029,039 251,618,745
Operating income {loss) (20,136,158) (279,026) (20,415,184) 6,643,073

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

National school lunch and other food programs:

Federal funds 15,717,693 15,717,693
State funds 1,017,320 1,017,320
USDA commedities 2,063,431 2,063,431
Interest expense (16,635) (16,635)
Investment income 903,092 92,536 995,628 3,260,248
Total nonoperating revenues, net 19,684,901 92,536 19,777,437 3,269,248
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers {451,257) (186,490) (637,747) 9,912,321
Capital contributions - equipment 655,145 655,145
Transfers qut (127,762) (127,762}

Change in net assets 203,888 (314,252) (110,364) 9,912,321
Total net assets - beginning 1,283,652 413,864 1,697,516 2,646,868
Total net assets - ending $ 1,487,540 § 99,612 3 1,587,152 $ 12,559,189

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities - Enlerprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Food Enterprise Internal
Services Funds Total Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 22,104,944 $ 5,854,755 $ 27,959,699 $ 46,606,164
Receipts from assessments made to other funds - 215,741,374
Payments to suppliers (13,929,280) (1,376,083) (15,305,363) (73,705,525)
Payments to employees (18,079,653) (2,222,375) (20,302,028)
Payments for insurance claims - (175,840,968)
Payments for assessments made by other funds (7,195.590) (265,154) (7.460,744)
Payments for other operating expenses (657,512) (2,333,654) (2,991,166) (1,182,492)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (17,757,091) (342,511) (18,099,602) 11,618,553
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Nonoperating grants received 16,649,140 16,649,140
Transfers to other funds (127,762) (127,762)
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital
financing activities 16,649,140 (127,762) 16,521,378 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital leases 95,858 95,858
Purchases of capital assets (491,925) (491,925)
Principal paid on capital leases (203,962) (17,003) (220,965)
Interest paid on capital leases (23,031) (23,031)
Net cash (used for) capital and
related financing activities (623,060) (17,003) (640,063) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received 903,092 92,536 995,628 3,676,994
Net cash provided by investing activities 903,092 92,536 995,628 3,676,994
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (827,919) (394,740) (1,222,659) 15,295,547
Cash and cash equivatents - beginning 6,051,889 1,356,479 7,408,368 21,508,581
Cash and cash equivaients - ending 5 5223970 § 961,738 § 6,185,709 § 36,804,128
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (20136,158) % (279.026) § (20.415,184) § 6,643,073
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,084,473 19,444 1,103,917
USDA commodities used 2,083,431 2,063,431
Effects of changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 5,227 237,965 243,192
Due from other funds - 3,864,366
Non USDA inventories 45,443 41,207 86,650
Prepaids 88,775 88,775
Accounts payable 16,573 (2,776) 13,797 (6.653)
Claims payable - 896,413
Advance premium withholdings - 221,354
Due to other funds (1,023,007) (415,168) (1,438,175)
Deferred revenue 90,772 11,880 102,652
Compensated absences 96,155 (44,812) 51,343
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (17,757,091) § (342,511) $ (18,099602) $ 11,618,563
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Capital contributions of equipment $ 655,145 $ - $ 655,145 $ -
USDA commodities received (2,063,431) (2,063,431)

The Notes to the Financial Staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Agency Funds -
Retirement Schools'
and Pension Independent
System Activity Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ - $ 3,151,161
Investments:
Commoen and preferred stocks 562,719,784
Short-term investments 39,497,316
U.S. government and agency securities 43,665,000 3,631,906
Fixed income securities 192,222,903
Real estate 81,442,292
Participation contract 9,272,118
Private equity 2,209,725
Securities lending short-term investment pool 54,847,411
Maryland local government investment pool 6,560,879
Montgomery County investment pool 906,721
Total investments 985,876,549 11,099,506
Accounts receivable 2,538 1,831,262
Inventories 275,463
Total assets 085,879,087 $ 16,357,392
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,795,524
Due to general fund 1,308,774
Liability for collateral received under securities
lending agreements 54,847,411
Due to student groups 14,561,868
Total liabilities 56,156,185 $ 16,357,392
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 929,722,902

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Retirement
and Pension
System
ADDITIONS
Employer's contribution $ 58,000,751
Members' contributions 8,932,215
Total contributions 66,932,966
Investment eamings:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 108,941,078
Interest and dividends 22,481,128
Securities lending income 2,288,912
Total investment income 133,711,118
Less investment expense:
Investment fees and other (3,113,605)
Securities lending fees (2,223,176)
Total investrnent expense (5,336,781)
Net investment earnings 128,374,337
Total additions 195,307,303
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to plan members 48,426,240
Administrative expenses 2,270,656
Total deductions 50,696,896
Change in net assets 144,610,407
Net assets - beginning 785,112,495

Net assets - ending

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of MCPS have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to local government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
accounting policies of MCPS are described below.

a) Reporting Entity

The Board of Education of Montgomery County is the elected body, corporate and politic,
established under Maryland law to provide public education in kindergarten through twelfth grade to
children residing within the borders of Montgomery County, Maryland. The Board determines
educational policy and employs a superintendent of schools to administer the public school system
known as Montgomery County Public Schools (MCPS). Primary funding is provided by
Montgomery County from its general revenues. Funds also are received from state and federal
sources for general school aid and specific purpose grants. The budget is approved by the
Montgomery County Council. The Board of Education has no power to levy and collect taxes or to
increase the budget. Because of the relationship with Montgomery County, MCPS is considered a
component unit of the county government, as defined by GAAP for governmental entities.

The accompanying financial statements present the primary government, MCPS, and its discretely
presented component unit, the Montgomery County Public Schools Educational Foundation, Inc.
(Foundation). The Foundation is included in the reporting entity because of the financial benefits
provided through it to MCPS and because MCPS is considered to be financially accountable. The
Foundation is reported in a separate column in the district-wide financial statements to emphasize
that it is legally separate from MCPS. The Foundation is presented as an enterprise fund type.

The Foundation accepts grants and contributions from private organizations and individuals. All
such funds received are used to enhance MCPS educational programs and to provide student
scholarships. Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Office of the Chief Operating
Ofticer, Montgomery County Public Schools, 850 Hungerford Drive, Rockville, Maryland 20850.

b) Basis of Presentation

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of MCPS and its component unit except for
fiduciary activities. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. An exception to this general rule is that interfund services provided or used between
functions have not been eliminated in the statement of activities because to do so would distort the
net cost data for functional activities as reported in the total column of that statement.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from its legally separate
component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Intergovernmental revenue and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the district-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor enterprise funds are aggregated and reported
as nonmajor funds.
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MCPS reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the primary operating fund of MCPS. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used in the acquisition or
construction of school sites and buildings and other major capital facilities.

MCPS reports the following major proprietary fund:

The food services fund accounts for the operations of 208 cafeterias and the central production
facility, providing for the preparation and sale of meals to students and other agencies and
customers.

Additionally, MCPS reports the following fund types:

The special revenue fund accounts for the use of Cable TV franchise fees that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specific purposes.

The internal service fund accounts for the financing of employee health benefits provided to other
funds of the government on a cost reimbursement basis.

The pension trust fund accounts for the activities of the MCPS Employees’ Retirement and
Pension System, which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified MCPS
employees.

The agency fund accounts for assets held by elementary and secondary schools for student
groups. Agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e., assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of results of operations.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Food Services enterprise fund, of the nonmajor enterprise funds, and of
the internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds and the internal service fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

¢) Measurement focus, basis of accounting

The district-wide, proprietary, and certain fiduciary (pension trust) fund financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Agency funds, which have no measurement focus, also use the accrual basis of accounting to
recognize assets and liabilities. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met. Revenue from USDA commodities is considered earned when the commodities are
used. The value of unused commodities is reported as unearned revenue. Employee and
employer contributions to the pension trust fund are recognized as revenue in the period that the
contributions are due. Pension benefits expense and refunds are recognized when due and
payabie.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are both measurable and available. All governmental fund revenues are considered available
if the revenues are collected within ninety days after year-end. MCPS’ primary sources of funding
are intergovernmental revenues which are either unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure or are
restricted to a specific purpose. Unrestricted funds are recorded as revenues at the time of receipt
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or earlier if they meet the availability criterion. Restricted funds are recognized as revenue when all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met and the resources are available.
Restricted funds received in excess of recorded expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting,
except for principal and interest on capital leases, and expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, which are recorded only when payment is due. Capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds from capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. MCPS has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is MCPS' policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

d) Cash and Investments

MCPS maintains an active pooled cash and investment program which is managed in accordance
with the Annotated Code of Maryland. Overnight investments in repurchase agreements and
money market investments are stated at amortized cost. Investment income is allocated to the
various funds based on their average equity in the pool. The assignment of allocated investment
income to the general fund is reported as a transfer.

Pension Trust Fund investments consist of a group pension immediate participation contract
carried at contract value and separate funds carried at fair value. Equity and bond securities are
valued at closing sales prices as reported on national or international securities exchanges at
current exchange rates, or at closing bid prices as reported by investment dealers. The fair value of
mortgages and real estate investments are based on independent appraisals.

Internal Service Fund investments are stated at fair value. For purposes of the statement of cash
flows, the Internal Service Fund and the Food Services Fund consider all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

The cash in the Agency Fund represents the independent activity fund cash balances in the
separate bank accounts of individual schools and other groups. The bank accounts are maintained
by each of the locations. The administrator at each location is required, under MCPS policy, to
deposit any funds in excess of current needs with a federally or state insured financial institution or
in the MCPS Centralized Investment Fund. All such funds earn market rate interest and are
available to the schools on a demand basis.

The Agency Fund and the component unit invest in certain external investment pools. The
Maryland Local Government Investment Pool consists of funds from local governments placed in
the custody of the state and funds from the state. Oversight responsibility for the pool resides with
the state treasurer. The Montgomery County investment pool invests funds for itself and
participating agencies pursuant to the Annotated Code of Maryland, County Code and the county’s
short-term investment policy as approved by the County Council. The fair value of MCPS’ position
in the aforementioned pools is the same as the value of pool shares.

e) Inventories and Prepaid ltems

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. For supplies, instructional materials,
transportation parts, food, and food related inventories, cost is determined by the average cost
method; for transportation fuels, cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. Commodities
received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) are stated at fair market value. Unused
USDA commodities in inventory at year end are reported as deferred revenue as title does not pass
to MCPS until the commodities are used. The cost of all inventories is recorded as an
expenditure/expense at the time the individual inventory items are consumed.
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Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both district-wide and fund financial statements.

f) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by MCPS as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 ($600 for
the Food Services Fund) for equipment and $200,000 for buildings and structural additions, and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are valued at
cost where historic records exist and at estimated historic cost where no historic records exist.
Donated capital assets are valued at estimated fair market value at the date received.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Land and building improvements 20
Portable classrooms 15
Furniture, heavy equipment and vehicles 12
Technology, light equipment and vehicles 5

dg) Compensated Absences

MCPS employees are permitted to accumulate earned but unused annual and sick leave benefits.
It is MCPS policy to pay employees who separate from service with MCPS the accumulated
amount of earned but unused annual leave and, for employees with at least five years credited
service, one quarter of vested, accumulated sick leave. Employees with thirty or more years
credited service receive 30 percent of vested, accumulated sick leave. All annual and vested sick
leave is accrued when incurred in the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only at the time of employee
resignations and retirements.

h) Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the district-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. Only the portion of long-term obligations expected to be paid from expendable
available financial resources is reported as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements
and the face amount of capital lease issuances is reported as other financing sources.

i) Fund Equity

Governmental funds, in the fund financial statements, report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change.

Budgetary Information
a) Overview

The majority of current funding for MCPS is provided by Montgomery County, the State of
Maryland, and the federal government. Under Maryland school statutes, the MCPS annual budget
is presented to the Montgomery County Council no later than March 1 and is to be adopted by the
Council by May 31. In general, the county is then responsible to fund the budget so adopted, to the
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extent that funds are not raised from other sources (state and federal governments, etc.). The
Board of Education has no power to levy taxes or to spend funds not appropriated by the
Montgomery County Council.

Formal budgetary integration, including encumbrance accounting, is employed as a management
control device during the year for the governmental and proprietary fund types. Management is
authorized to transfer funds within major categories of expenditure (i.e., administration, instructional
salaries, etc.) up to $100,000. Transfers in excess of $100,000 require the approval of the
superintendent and the Board of Education; transfers between major categories require the
approval of the Montgomery County Council. By state law, major categories of expenditure may
not exceed budgeted amounts for the year ending June 30.

The budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying financial statements recognize budget
revisions made during the year, all of which were properly reported and/or approved, as applicable.
During 2007, supplemental appropriations increasing the operating budget by $7,690,355 and
increasing the capital budget by $6,274,000 were approved.

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end in the governmental funds are reported in accordance with
GAAP as reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.
Encumbrances outstanding for the proprietary funds are eliminated for financial statement
presentation. Annual appropriations that are not spent, encumbered, or designated at year-end
lapse. Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are reappropriated in the subsequent year.

Capital projects are funded primarily by Montgomery County and by the state. Funds are budgeted
and appropriated on a project basis and on an annual basis. Capital projects funds do not lapse at
the end of each year, but may be expended until project completion.

b) Budgetary Presentation

The general fund statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and

Actual has been prepared on the legally prescribed budgetary basis of accounting to demonstrate

compliance with the legally adopted budget. Generally, the budgetary basis of accounting employs

the modified accrual basis plus encumbrances. The basis used to prepare the legally adopted

budget differs from GAAP as follows:

+ Encumbrances outstanding are charged to budgetary appropriations in the current period.

« Expenditures for compensated absences are accounted for on a cash basis.

e State of Maryland retirement contributions made on behalf of MCPS employees are a legal
obligation of the State, and so are not included in the MCPS budget.

e Capital lease financing is accounted for as other financing sources for GAAP purposes.
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Adjustments to reconcile the budgetary statement to the GAAP fund statement are as follows:

Expenditures Other
and Financing Effect on Fund
Revenues _Encumbrances Sources Balance

As reported - budgetary basis $ 1,805584224 $ 1,797,334,071 $ 127,762 $ 8,377,915
Reconciling items:
2007 Encumbrances outstanding (10,677,103) 10,577,103
Expenditures of prior year

encumbrances 14,230,647 {14,230,647)
Increase in compensated absences 1,546,668 { 1,546,668)
State of Maryland retirement

contributions 91,640,312 91,640,319 -
Capital lease financing 13,677,798 13,677,798 -
As reported - GAAP basis $ 1,807,224543 $ 1,807,852,400 $ 13,805,560 $ 3,177,703

Capital Projects Fund encumbrances of $67,535,136 are not reflected in the governmental fund
balance sheet as the offsetting revenues are not available until the expenditures on a GAAP basis
are incurred.

Beginning June 15 of each fiscal year, MCPS issues purchase orders and begins shipment of
inventory to various locations for items such as supplies, textbooks, and construction contracts that
will be charged to the budget of the next fiscal year. These obligations and warehouse shipments
are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2007, $10,678,290 of such
purchase orders had been issued.

c) Deficit Fund Equity

The Capital Projects Fund had an unreserved, undesignated fund deficit of $13,668,809. The
deficit reflects school construction funding reversions by the State of Maryland that occurred after
the anticipated funds had been spent. The deficit will be eliminated as Montgomery County applies
adjustments to revenue sources from state to local funding for the affected capital projects. The
Entrepreneurial Activities Fund reduced its deficit by $59,848, to a deficit in net assets of
$1,194,729 at June 30, 2007. It is anticipated that the deficit will be eliminated, over time, as the
level of fund activity expands and cost cutting measures continue.

Net assets of the Internal Service Fund represent equity reserved for future claim losses and
benefits under the employee benefit plan.

Deposits and Investments

Cash and investments at June 30, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Primary Component
Government Unit

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 14,371,621 5
Cash and cash equivalents 5,223,970 2,441
Cash-fiduciary funds 3,151,161
Investments — cash equivalents 36,804,128
Investments 5,118,755
Investments-fiduciary funds 996,976,055

Total $ 1,056,526,935 $ 5,122,196
Deposits and Investments Summary:
Deposits $ (7,863,666) $ 2,441
Investments 1,064,360,304 5,119,755
Cash on hand 30,297

Total $ 1,056,526,935 $ 5,122,196
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a) Deposits

MCPS is required, in accordance with a lease agreement with the Montgomery County Revenue
Authority, to maintain an operations and maintenance fund which is to be used only to support the
food services operations. The agreement requires the fund to maintain a balance of $1,000,000.
Withdrawals from the fund, which may be made at any time, must be restored to the fund within
twelve months of the date of withdrawal. No withdrawals were made from the fund during 2007.
The balance in the operations and maintenance fund at June 30, 2007, was $1,116,762.

Custodial credit risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
MCPS’ deposits may not be returned to it. The Annotated Code of Maryland requires that funds on
deposit with a financial institution be fully secured by deposit insurance, surety bonds, obligations
of the United States or its agencies, obligations of the State of Maryland or any of its agencies, or
obligations of a county, other governmental authority, or municipal corporation in the State of
Maryland.

At June 30, 2007, the reported balance of MCPS’ deposits was $(7,863,666) and the bank balance
was $9,094,110. Of the bank balance, $9,094,110 was collateralized by federal depository
insurance or by collateral held by MCPS' agent in MCPS’ name.

b) Investments

Investments as of June 30, 2007, are as follows:

investment Type Fair Value
Pension Trust Investments:
Common and preferred stocks $ 562,719,784
Short-term investments 39,497,316
U.S. Government and agency securities 43,665,000
Fixed income securities 192,222,903
Real estate 81,442,292
Participation contract 9,272,118
Private equity 2,209,725
Securities lending short-term investment pool 54,847,411
Subtotal Pension Trust Investment 985,876,549
Other Investments:
U.S. Government securities 3,631,906
Repurchase agreements 1,144,147
Mutual funds 66,240,102
Maryland Local Government Investment Pool 6,560,879
Montgomery County investment pool 906,721
Total investments $  1,064,360,304

Securities lending transactions. The Annotated Code of Maryland allows the MCPS Employees’
Retirement and Pension System (Pension Trust) to participate in securities lending transactions.
The Pension Trust uses the Northern Trust Company (Northern), its custodial bank, to lend its
securities to broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a form of borrowing agreement.

During 2007, Northern lent Pension Trust securities for which it is custodian. Pension Trust
securities not under the custodianship of Northern are not part of the Securities Lending
Authorization Agreement. Northern receives from borrowers both cash and non-cash collateral.
Non-cash collateral includes United States government securities and irrevocable letters of credit.
Northern does not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral unless the borrower is in default under
the agreement. Borrowers are required to deliver cash and/or non-cash collateral having a market
vajue of not less than 102 percent, 105 percent if the borrowed securities and collateral are
denominated in non-U.S. currencies) of the market value of the borrowed securities. The Pension
Trust did not impose any restriction during 2007 on the amount of securities Northern may lend.
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The following represents the balances relating to securities lending transactions at June 30, 2007.

Securities
Underlying Collateral Cash Collateral
Securities Lent Securities Value Investment Value
Lent for cash coliateral:
U.S. Government $ 12,483,803 $ $ 12,725,635
Domestic equities 35,573,640 36,413,511
International equities 3,278,646 3,434,269
Domestic fixed-income 1,883,407 1,927,649
International fixed-income 332,272 346,347
Lent for securities collaterat:
U.S. Agencies 661,776 673,611
Domestic fixed income 824,590 839,336
Domestic equities 3,829,708 3,932,076
Total $ 58,867,842 § 5,445,023 § 54,847 411

Northern indemnifies the Pension Trust against any losses, damages or expenses it may incur if
Northern is unable to recover the borrowed securities, and distributions made with respect to those
securities, as a result of Northern's failure to make a reasoned determination of borrower
creditworthiness or to demand adequate and appropriate collateral. During 2007, there were no
losses resulting either from borrower default or investment losses in collateral pools. The Pension
Trust and the borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on
demand.

The cash collateral is invested in the Northern Core USA Collateral Section (Fund). Fund
investments include United States government securities, domestic and foreign bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit and time deposits, and U.S. dollar denominated obligations
issued or guaranteed by foreign governments. The fund is accounted for on an amortized cost
basis. The fund is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates in
accordance with the requirements of SEC Rule 2a-7. Northern believes that the value of the
Pension Trust's position in the Fund on an amortized cost basis approximates the valuation of the
Fund if valued at tair value.

Because loans are terminable at will, their duration did not generally match the duration of the
investments made with cash collateral. At June 30, 2007, the Pension trust had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers. '

Interest rate risk. MCPS manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates by limiting the duration of its investment portfolios. Internal pooled investments duration is
limited to less than six months. The investment policy of the Centralized Investment Fund limits
duration to three years or less. The Pension Trust investment policy specifies that fixed-income
portfolio duration should not exceed plus or minus one year from the LLehman Brothers Aggregate
Bond Index.
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The following represents fixed-income investments held at June 30, 2007, with related maturity
schedule.
Investment Maturities (in years)

Less than 105 6to 10 More than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 year years years 10 years
Pension Trust Investments:
U.S. Government $ 24,072,754 $ 278,128 $ 12,508,049 $ 6,377,299 § 4,909,278
U.S. agencies 19,496,739 1,640,683 1,492,286 396,427 15,967,343
Asset-backed securities 18,762,219 11,914,491 6,847,728
Collateralized Mortgage
obligations 51,737,263 6,878,649 541,120 371,381 43,946,113
Corporate bonds 33,015,529 3,183,570 12,394,750 6,387,077 11,050,132
Government mortgage-backed
securities 34,564,859 15,804,324 52,320 1,022,249 17,685,966
Bond index fund 53,727,792 53,727,792
Municipal bonds 510,748 510,748
Short-term 39,497,316 39,497,316
Sub-total Pension Trust investments 275,385,219 121,010,462 38,903,016 14,654,433 100,917,308
Other Investments:
U.S. Government 3,631,906 3,631,906
Repurchase agreements 1,144,147 1,144,147
U.S. Government mutual funds 66,240,102 66,240,102
Maryland Local Government
Investment Pool 6,660,879 6,560,879
Montgomery County Investment
Pool 906,721 906,721
Total $ 353,868,974 $ 199,494,217 $ 38,903,016 $ 14,554,433 § 100,917,308

Credit risk. The Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes MCPS to invest in obligations for which
the United States has pledged its faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest, in
obligations issued by a federal agency in accordance with an act of Congress, in repurchase
agreements collateralized at not less than 102 percent of the principal amount by obligations of the
United States and its agencies, in money market mutual funds operated in accordance with SEC
Rule 2A-7, or in any investment portfolio created under the Maryland Local Government Investment
Pool.

The Pension Trust Fund and the internal Service Fund are authorized to invest in domestic and
foreign equities, obligations of the United States and its agencies, securities issued or guaranteed
by a foreign government, marketable corporate bonds, collateralized obligations, commercial
paper, bankers’ acceptances, money market funds, and pooled real estate investments. Fixed
income investments are to be made primarily in issues rated “A" or better by Moody’s and "A” or
better by Standard & Poor’s rating agencies.

Pension Trust fixed-income investments at June 30, 2007, had the following credit risk
characteristics:

Percent of
S&P/Moody’s Fixed-Income

Quality Rating Investments Fair Value
AAA/Aaa 55.8 % $ ~ 153,796,404
AA 4.0 11,003,732
A 6.3 17,355,409
B 0.4 1,143,127
BB/Ba 0.4 1,152,914
BBB/Baa 5.0 13,732,366
Not rated 12.9 35,648,086
Total 84.8 % $ 233,832,038
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Pension Trust investments include $41,553,181 in obligations of the U.S. Government or
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government that are not considered to have credit
risk.

Other MCPS investments are rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, except the Montgomery County
investment pool which is not rated by the rating agencies.

Concentration of credit risk. The investment policy of the Pension Trust limits the equity holdings in
any one company to not more than five percent of the value of assets within a portfolio. Not more
than ten percent of the market value of a fixed-income portfolio shall be invested in securities of
any one issuer, except U.S. Government and agency obligations.

Foreign currency risk. The Pension Trust's exposure to foreign currency risk derived from its
positions in foreign currency denominated investments.  The systems foreign currency risk at
June 30, 2007, is as follows:

Total Fair
Currency Equities Fixed Income Short-Term Value
European Euro $ 20,657,839 $ $ 22,707 $§ 20,680,546
British Pound Sterling 10,915,138 10,915,138
Swiss Franc 3,583,006 50,140 3,633,146
Japanese Yen 6,893,060 1,149,101 1,143,756 9,185,917
Hong Kong Dollar 2,010,791 2,010,791
Canadian Dollar 2,714,977 2,714,977
Polish Zloty 23,295 23,295
Swedish Krona 1,513,199 1,513,199
Mexican Peso 205,930 (196,064) 9,866
Australian Dollar (46,209) (46,209)
Total $ 48,288,010 $ 1,355,031 § 997,625 $ 50,640,666

The investment policy of the Pension Trust provides guidance for the amount of investments made
in foreign currency-denominated equity securities. The target allocation for foreign currency-
denominated equity investments is 14 percent.

c) Cash on Hand

At year-end, the primary government had $30,297 on hand in petty cash accounts.

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2007, consist of the following:

Due to the general fund from other governmental funds representing

advances of pooled cash $ 12,088,078
Due to the general fund from enterprise funds representing advances of
pooled cash 9,678,812
Due to the internal service fund from the general fund for employee
benefit plan expenditures 2,290,870

Total $ 24,057,760

Following is a summary of balances due from other funds reported in fund financial statements:
Due from other funds, Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds $ 21,766,890

Due from other funds, Statement of Net Assets-Proprietary Funds 2,290,870
Total $ 24,057,760

Interfund balances are repaid currently from reimbursable expenditures and proceeds from the sale
of goods and services.
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Transfers to/from other funds consist of the following:

From non-major enterprise funds to the general fund to assign allocated

investment income to the general fund 3 92,536
Transfer of Adult Education Fund net assets to general fund 35,226
Total $ 127,762

The Adult Education Fund ceased operations effective July 1, 2006, with the final conveyance of
remaining adult education programs to Montgomery College. Net assets of the fund, at the time
operations ceased, were transferred to the General Fund.

Due From Employees

The $554,897 reported as due from employees arose from past transition to a unified pay cycle
calendar for twelve-month employees. Repayment is made from final paychecks when employees

separate from active employment with MCPS.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land $ 67,966,869 $ 177,432 § 3677 § 68,140,624
Construction in progress 219,314,700 165,933,213 208,640,081 176,607,832
Total nondepreciable capital assets 287,281,569 166,110,645 208,643,758 244,748,456
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 1,659,903,532 186,720,894 13,180,543 1,833,443,883
Site improvements 131,397,637 22,397,482 153,795,119
Vehicles and equipment 135,633,758 16,552,030 15,422,009 136,763,779
Total depreciable capital assets 1,926,934,927 225,670,406 28,602,552 2,124,002,781
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 575,568,134 40,877,579 13,023,162 603,422,551
Site improvements 27,882,185 3,214,683 31,096,868
Vehicles and equipment 76,695,383 11,343,192 15,282,375 72,756,200
Total accumulated depreciation 680,145,702 55,435,454 28,305,537 707,275,619
Total depreciable
capital assets, net 1,246,789,225 170,234,952 297,015 1,416,727,162
Government activities
capital assets, net $ 1,534,070,794 $ 336,345,597 $ 208,940,773 $ 1,661,475618
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings $ 17,831 § $ $ 17,831
Vehicles and equipment 19,218,495 1,229,771 879,357 19,568,909
Total depreciable capital assets 19,236,326 1,229,771 879,357 19,586,740
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 11,590 1,783 13,373
Vehicles and equipment 13,578,212 1,102,134 796,657 13,883,689
Total accumulated depreciation 13,589,802 1,103,817 796,657 13,897,062
Business-type activities
capital assets, net 3 5,648,524 $ 125,854 $ 82,700 $ 5,689,678
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Regular instruction $ 45,597,956
Special education 282,706
School administration 47,288
Student personnel services 5,468
Student transportation 7,318,363
Operation of plant 138,179
Maintenance of plant 857,806
Administration 1,187,688
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 55,435,454

Business-Type Activities:

Food services $ 1,084,473
Entrepreneurial 17,660
Real estate management 1,784
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $ 1,103,917

Commitments for ongoing construction in progress at June 30, 2007, were $43,733,480.
7. Payables

Accounts payable and other current liabilities of the governmental and business-type activities at
June 30, 2007 are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Accounts payable $ 28,058,574 $ 281,280 $ 28,339,854
Retainage payable 11,903,420 11,203,420
Accrued salaries and withholdings 71,442,043 71,442,043
Claims payable 24,815,807 24,815,807
Due to employees-advance

premium withholding 2,499,603 2,499,603
Accrued interest payable 16,635 16,635
Total accounts payable and other

current liabilities $ 138,719,447 $ 207,915 $ 139,017,362

8. Leases
a) Operating Leases

Expenditures under lease agreements for office space and equipment were approximately
$4,375,000 in 2007. Commitments for fiscal year 2008 under lease agreements are approximately
$3,143,000. Lease agreements typically provide for automatic termination on July 1 of any year in
which funds to meet rental payments are not appropriated.

The Montgomery County Revenue Authority (MCRA) issued $6,750,000 of Lease Revenue Bonds
in 1994 to finance the renovation and expansion of the MCPS food services centralized production
facility. The MCPS leases the facility from MCRA for a period of fifteen years. The Lease Revenue
Bonds are payable from the lease payments. The lease payments are payable by the Food
Services Fund solely from revenues deposited in the Pledged Revenue account. Pledged
revenues include all receipts, revenues, and income of the Food Services Fund, excluding amounts
received from the state, the county, or the federal government. Monthly lease payments, which
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totaled $672,375 in 2007, continue through March 1, 2008. Annual lease payment obligations are
as follows:

Amount
Fiscal year ending June 30:
2008 $ 504,000
Total $ 504,000

MCPS has the option to prepay the lease at the lease payment price, plus an additional amount
equal to the bond redemption premium if applicable. The MCRA will convey ownership of the facility
to Montgomery County on expiration of the lease agreement. Among other things, the lease
agreement requires MCPS to set fees, as necessary, so that each fiscal year total revenues of the
Food Services Fund, plus excess cash, will be at least equal to total expenditures, as defined; and
that the Food Services Fund shall not sustain a cumulative deficit of $1,000,000 or more of total
expenditures, as defined, over total revenues over any period of four successive fiscal years and
fail to restore the operations and maintenance fund by the end of each successive four year period.
MCPS is in compliance with the covenants of the lease agreement.

b) Capital Leases

Under a master lease arrangement, MCPS acquires school buses, vehicles, technology and other
equipment under noncancellable capital leases that expire at various times through fiscal year
2012, lease payments, including interest, in fiscal year 2007 were $13,423,078 for the General
Fund, $12,316,474 for the Capital Projects Fund and $243,996 for the Enterprise Fund.

Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental Enterprise
Activities Fund
Vehicles and equipment $ 46,683,396 $ 1,109,753
Less: accumulated depreciation (10,405,236) (248,932)
Total $ 36,278,160 3 860,821

Future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as
of June 30, 2007, were as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30 Governmental Enterprise
Activities Fund

2008 3 19,294,524 $ 244,031
2009 15,173,438 179,341
2010 9,282,298 74,734
2011 4,042,987 20,994
2012 1,839,287 -
Total minimum lease payments 49,632,534 519,100
Less : Amount representing interest (4,232,376) (35,297)
Present value of future minimum lease payments  $ 45,400,158 $ 483,803

$26,388,051 of outstanding capital lease obligations for governmental activities at June 30, 2007,
was used to acquire capital assets.
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9.

10.

Long-Term Liabilities

a) Technology Loans

MCPS received non-interest bearing technology loans from Montgomery County that were used to
replace certain business information systems. The loans are to be repaid from the General Fund
over a period of eight years. Loan repayments in 2007 were $328,420.

Annual technology loan payments are as follows:

Amount
2008 $ 328,420
2009 328,420
Total $ 656,840
b) Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term liability activities during 2007 were as follows:
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Capital leases $ 44,475,334 $ 24922301 $ 23,997,477 $ 45,400,158 $ 17,939,945
Compensated absences 81,811,220 13,783,280 7,748,554 87,845,956 8,615,108
Net pension obligation 4,506,465 360,517 830,370 4,036,612 -
Technology loans payable 985,260 - 328,420 656,840 328,420
Total $ 131,778279 $ 39,066,108 $ 32,904,821 $ 137,939,566 $ 26,883,471
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Business-Type
Activities:
Capital leases $ 608,910 $ 95,858 $ 220,965 $ 483,803 $ 224,739
Compensated absences 1,278,366 51,343 - 1,329,709 14,952
Total $ 1,887,276 $ 147,201 220,965 $ 1,813,512 % 239,691

Compensated absences and net pension obligation for the governmental activities are generally
liquidated by the General Fund.

Risk Management

MCPS is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees or students; natural disasters; and employee
health benefits. MCPS participates in the Montgomery County Liability and Property Coverage Self-
Insurance Program. Under this program, MCPS receives coverage for general liability, workers'
compensation, public official liability, property, and motor vehicle risks, generally up to a maximum
of $100,000 per claim. MCPS' premium payments to the fund are an actuarially determined
reflection of the covered risks. MCPS purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of
coverage by the self-insurance program and for other risks not covered by the program. Settled
claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The employee health benefits plan is financed through an internal service fund, the Employee
Benefit Plan Trust Fund. The Employee Benefit Plan Trust Fund provides plan coverage under
contracts with several insurance companies and health maintenance organizations (HMOQO's).
MCPS funds participating in the plan by making payments to the Employee Benefit Plan Fund in
amounts sufficient to cover plan costs, which are comprised of premiums paid to insured plans, and
actuarial estimates of amounts needed to pay prior- and current-year ¢laims and to establish a
reserve for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The claims payabie of $24,815,807 reported in
the Internal Service Fund at June 30, 2007, is based on the requirements of GASB Staternent No.
10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the
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financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the Internal Service Fund's claims payable for fiscal years 2006 and 2007 are reflected
below.
Beginning incurred Claims Claim Ending
Payable (Including IBNR) Payments Payahle

2006 $ 20,356,643 §$ 163,218,173 $ (159,655,422) $ 23,919,394
2007 23,919,394 176,737,380 (175,840,967) 24,815,807

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Substantially all of MCPS' employees working at least 4 hours a day in an approved job
classification are covered under one of three mandatory defined benefit retirement plans. Two of
these are cost-sharing multi-employer type plans administered by the Maryland State Retirement
System (MSRS); and one is a single-employer plan, the MCPS Employees' Retirement and
Pension System, administered by MCPS.

State Plans
a) Plan Description

Eligible MCPS professional and administrative employees participate in one of two state plans, the
Maryland State Teachers' Retirement System or the Maryland State Teachers' Pension System, the
costs of which are borne by the state. Effective January 1, 1980, new MCPS teacher and
administrative personnel became members of the Maryland State Teachers' Pension System.
Members in the existing Maryland State Teachers' Retirement System had the option to transfer
from the old to the new plan. Benefits at retirement are based upon years of service and the
average earned compensation of an eligible employee during any three consecutive years that
provide the highest average earned compensation. Benefits vest after five years of creditable
service. During April 20086, the State of Maryland amended the Maryland State Teachers’ Pension
System to improve pension benefits for plan members who retire on or after July 1, 2006. The
State increased the “multiplier” in the benefit formula for all service after July 1, 1998, from 1.4
percent to 1.8 percent.

The financial statements of the Maryland State Teachers’ Retirement System and the Maryland
State Teachers’ Pension System are included in the comprehensive annual financial report of the
Maryland State Retirement System. A copy of that report may be obtained by writing to The
Maryland State Retirement System, 120 East Baltimore Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21202.

b) Funding Policy

Covered employees are, by statute, required to contribute 5 to 7 percent to the retirement system,
and 4 percent on July 1, 2007, and 5 percent on July 1, 2008 and thereafter to the pension system.
MCPS is not required to contribute. The employer's share of contributions to these two plans for
MCPS employees, which amounted to $91,640,319, $84,294,349 and $81,937,339 in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively, is the legal responsibility of the state. MCPS has recognized in the
governmental fund statements revenue and expenditures in the amount equal to the state’s
contribution payment.

MCPS Plan
a) Plan Description

The MCPS Employees’ Retirement and Pension System is funded and administered as a single
plan with two separate benefit structures, the retirement system and the pension system.
Retirement system benefits cover employees hired prior to January 1, 1980. The retirement system
provides retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits, to employees who are not
members of the Maryland State Teachers’ Retirement System and supplements the state benefits
to members of the Maryland State Teachers’ Retirement System. Benefits at retirement are based
on years of service and the average earned compensation of an eligible employee during any three
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years that provide the highest average earned compensation, and are adjusted for changes in the
consumer price index after retirement. Benefits at early retirement are reduced by an early
retirement factor. Benefits vest after five years of creditable service.

Pension system benefits cover employees hired after January 1, 1980. Members in the retirement
system may elect to participate in the pension system, in which case their excess contributions are
refunded. The pension system provides retirement benefits, as well as death and disability
benefits, to employees who are not members of the Maryland State Teachers’ Pension System and
supplements the state benefits to members of the Maryland State Teachers’ Pension System.
Benefits are based on years of service and a percentage of the average earned compensation of
an eligible employee during any three consecutive years that provide the highest average earned
compensation and are adjusted for changes in the consumer price index after retirement of not
more than 3 percent per year. Benefits at early retirement are reduced by an early retirement
factor. Benefits vest after five years of creditable service.

On May 9, 2006, the Board of Education amended the MCPS Employees’ Retirement and Pension
System to improve benefits for members of the pension system. The “multiplier” in the benefit
formula for core benefits was increased for service after July 1, 1998, from 1.4 percent to 1.8
percent and the supplemental benefit “multiplier” was set at 0.2 percent for all members of the
pension system.

At July 1, 20086, the date of the latest actuarial report, MCPS' plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 9,619
Terminated plan members entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 3,270
Active plan members 21,623

Total 34,512

Separate financial statements for the MCPS Employees’ Retirement and Pension System are not
available.

bh) Contributions

Plan members are required by resolution to contribute to the plan. Covered teachers and other
members of the retirement system contribute .5 percent and 5.5 percent, respectively, of their
salary to the plan. Effective July 1, 2007, covered teachers and other members contributions to the
pension system for the supplemental benefit and the combined core and supplemental benefit were
increased to 0.4 percent and 4.4 percent, respectively, on July 1, 2007, and 0.5 percent and 5.5
percent, respectively, on July 1, 2008. MCPS is required by resolution to contribute the remaining
actuarially determined amounts necessary to finance the combined coverage of plan members.
Benefits and contribution provisions are established and may be amended only by the Board of
Education. Adrninistrative costs are financed through investment earnings.

¢} Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

MCPS' annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the plan for the current year and the prior
two years were as follows:

Year Ended Annual Annual Net Pension
June 30 Pension Cost Contribution Obligation
2005 $ 28,873,339 $ 28,871,207 $ 4,567,028
2006 36,757,057 36,817,620 4,506,465
2007 57,530,898 58,000,751 4,036,612

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2005
actuarial valuation, as amended May 8, 2006, using the projected unit credit cost method and the
actuarial assumptions shown in d) below.
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13.

The pension system benefit improvements, which were retroactive to July 1, 1998, increased the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability at July 1, 2006, by $118,817,905. The additional accrued
liability resulting from the pension system benefit improvements is being amortized over 30 years.
The benefit improvements increased the employer contribution for FY 2007 by approximately $13.2
million.

d) Actuarial Information

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date July 1, 2006
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method July 1, 2006 Plan Amendments:
Amortized over 30 years
All other:

Level percentage of projected payroll. Increasing
3% per year. Open for gains/losses. Closed for
other changes.

Remaining amortization period July 1, 2006 plan amendments:
29 years
All other:
15 years
Asset valuation method 5-year, smoothed market
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.5%
Inflation rate 7.5%
Projected salary increases 4.0 -6.5%
Cost of living adjustments 3.0%

Other Postemployment Benefits

Employees receiving a Board of Education approved retirement are eligible, in accordance with
bargaining agreements between the Board of Education and employee associations, for continued
MCPS Employee Benefit Plan health care coverage if they have been covered under the MCPS
Employee Benefit Plan for at least five years. Employees covered less than five years under the
plan may continue plan coverage at higher premium rates. Currently, approximately 6,900 retirees
meet those eligibility requirements. MCPS contributes 64 percent and retirees contribute 36
percent toward contributions to the cost for health care, including dental, vision and prescription
drugs, and life insurance benefits for retirees and their dependents. The benefits that are provided
for retired employees under the MCPS Employee Benefit Plan are subject to the extent of assets in
the Employee Benefit Trust Fund and to the extent of the annual budgetary appropriation. MCPS
contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis and postretirement benefits are not accrued
over the service life of employees.

During the year, expenditures of $59,754,520 were recognized by the Internal Service Fund for
postretirement health care and life insurance benefits. Net assets available for future
postretirement benefit payments were $5,801,619 at June 30, 2007. In 2007, MCPS contributed
$34,741,372 towards the costs of these benefits.

Contingencies
a) Litigation

MCPS, in the normal course of its operations, is subject to lawsuits and claims. While the
outcome of these matters is uncertain, MCPS believes that any losses not otherwise covered by
insurance, which may ultimately be incurred as a result of lawsuits and claims, will not have a
material adverse effect on MCPS' financial condition. Additionally, it is the opinion of counsel that
under current law, MCPS would have governmental immunity in non-contractual matters for any
individual judgments in excess of $100,000, except for civil rights cases.
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b) Supported Projects

Certain programs, referred to as supported projects, serving specific needs and purposes of the
school system and the welfare of the students, are funded by special federal and state grants 'and
are included in the General Fund and the Enterprise Funds. Grant activities are subject to audit by
the granting agencies.

¢) Inthe opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of any of these matters will not be material
to the basic financial statements of MCPS.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

MCPS EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT AND PENSION SYSTEM

Schedule of Funding Progress
(000's omitted)

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of
Valuation Assets Liability (WAAL) Ratio Payroll (c) Covered
Date (a) (AAL)(b) (b-a) (a/b) Payroll
({b-a)/c)
7/1/2001 755,175  § 743,506 $ (11,669) 101.6% §$ 837,390 - %
7/1/2002 760,003 744,324 (15,679) 102.1 954,867 -
7/1/2003 740,515 793,043 52,528 93.4 993,454 5.3
7/1/2004 729,596 840,751 111,155 86.8 1,026,480 10.8
7/1/2005 729,231 905,339 176,108 80.5 1,080,319 16.3
7/1/2006 762,232 1,062,251 300,019 71.8 1,169,275 25.7
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Year Ended Annual Required Percentage Net Pension
June 30 Contribution Contributed Obligation

2002 $ 16,335,239 100 % $ 3,943,137

2003 17,652,634 100 3,923,538

2004 20,540,668 97 4,564,896

2005 29,911,241 100 4,567,028

2006 36,794,977 100 4,506,465

2007 57,568,815 101 4,036,612
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2007

Capital Projects Fund — The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
resources used in the acquisition or construction of school sites and buildings and other
major capital facilities.

Special Revenue Fund (nonmajor) — The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for

the receipt and expenditure of Cable TV franchise fees that are restricted as to purpose
and use.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Montgomery County $ 134,480,361 176,893,026 $ 128,661,468 $  (48,231,558)
State of Maryland 40,047,168 44,367,507 41,858,222 (2,509,285)
Other sources 96,000 221,125 (221,125)
Total revenues 174,623,529 221,481,658 170,519,690 (50,961,968)
Expenditures and encumbrances:

Capital outlay 174,623,529 221,481,658 170,716,237 50,765,421
Total expenditures and encumbrances 174,623,529 221,481,658 170,716,237 50,765,421
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and encumbrances - - (196,547) (196,547)

Fund balance - beginning - - (13,472,262) {13,472,262)
Fund balance - ending $ - - $  {13,668,809) $ (13,668,809)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
June 30, 2007

Expended to June

Availabe for Future

Project Name Project Authorization 30, 2007 Committed Expenditure
RIDGEVIEW MS $ 1.716,000 $ 69,510 $ 1,030,490 $ 616,000
RICHARD MONTGOMERY HS 82,439,905 62,843,369 14,078,132 5,518,404
GARRETT PARK ES 4,496,000 3,858,605 16,911 620,484
TRAVILAH ES 652,000 317,072 92,374 242,554
FARMLAND ES 6,244,000 5,930,603 20,452 292,945
LUXMANOR ES 987,000 440,937 239,932 306,131
COLLEGE GARDENS ES 21,923,869 12,744,544 8,187,449 991,876
FALLSMEAD ES 882,000 452,287 150,749 278,964
WAYSIDE ES 649,000 389,164 103,081 156,755
NORTH WEST HS 14,966,065 13,437,908 769,232 758,924
CLARKSBURG HS 51,666,516 50,862,086 757,320 47,110
BROAD ACRES ES 8,326,000 7,829,585 269,055 227,360
NORTHEAST CONSORTIUM ES #16 (BROOKVEW ES} 20,303,000 21,648,043 156,284 (1,501,327)
FRANCIS SCOTT KEY MS 3,053,000 1,271,677 371,122 1,410,201
GALWAY ES 1,501,000 1,146,030 339,607 15,363
PAINT BRANCH HS 3,538,000 1,560,504 1,851,934 125,562
CLARKSBURG/DAMASCUS ES #7 17,812,000 17,092,870 69,920 649,210
CLARKSBURG/DAMASCUS ES #8 1,496,000 331,434 459,264 705,302
NORTHWEST ES #7 19,256,000 18,777,654 218,174 280,172
BETHESDA CHEVY CHASE HS 418,000 - 31,500 386,500
WESTLAND MS 474,000 73,769 139,590 260,641
WALTER JOHNSON HS 33,305,000 10,933,971 3,159,319 18,211,710
ASHBURTON ES 620,000 437,594 116,334 66,072
THOMAS PYLE MS 669,000 378,318 142,552 148,130
SHERWOOD HS 14,680,000 10,018,245 1,053,299 3,608,456
CASHELL ES 1,606,000 257,274 973,331 375,395
SILVER SPRING INTERNATIONAL MS/SLIGO CREEK ES ADDITION 2,000,000 441,268 507,359 1,051,373
GAITHERSBURG HS 10,272,000 9,672,538 283,445 416,017
WASHINGTON GROVE ES 1,121,000 751,209 187,867 181,924
WATKINS MILLES 9,451,000 9,189,218 22,126 239,858
REDLAND MS 1,733,000 10,820 1,352,150 370,030
FIELDS ROAD ES 11,368,000 3,145,253 5,136,388 3,086,359
STEDWICK ES 861,000 489,061 226,516 145,423
SEVEN LOCKS ES 1,029,529 893,744 15,563 120,222
BELLS MILL ES 1,303,000 334,976 433,500 534,524
WELLER ROAD ES 8,801,000 4,784,660 1,004,862 3,011,478
ALBERT EINSTEIN 6,717,000 4,041,049 1,083,308 1,592,643
NORTHWOOCD (REFUGEE TRAINING) CTR 33,220,000 27,631,225 4,947,241 641,534
CRESTHAVEN ES 1,544,000 33,000 1,067,005 443,995
PARKLAND MS 32,585,267 31,008,800 1,104,470 471,997
Various County-wide Projects 144,084,296 99,405,025 15,365,929 29,313,342
Total Open & Interim Projects 579,769,447 434,834,898 67,535,136 77,399,413
Capitalized land, equipment and furniture, and items not capitalized (65,232,615) (52,559,471) (12,673,144) -
interim closing of open projects ** (216,796,107) (205,667,595) (11,128,512) -
Residual building value transter *** -

Total contruction in progress $ 297,740,725 $ 176,607,832 § 43,733,480 % 77,399,413

* Appropriations for school modernizations are approved by the Montgomery County Council in the aggregate as one project,
although MCPS seperately accounts for each modernization. The school modernization project, in the aggregate, does not
exceed the legally appropriated project authorization at June 30, 2007

** Represents expenditures for projects that are in use but not formally closed out.

"** Represents undepreciated residual value of building transfer to construction
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Cable TV franchise fees 3 1,383,000 $ 1,383,000 $ 1,383,000 § -
Total revenues 1,383,000 1,383,000 1,383,000 -
Expenditures and encumbrances:

Community services 1,383,000 1,383,000 1,327,488 55,512
Total expenditures and encumbrances 1,383,000 1,383,000 1,327,488 55,512
Excess of revenues over

expenditures and encumbrances - 55,512 55,512
Fund balance - beginning - 91,238 91,238
Fund balance - ending $ - $ 146,750 % 146,750
Reconciliation to GAAP fund balance:

2007 encumbrances outstanding 17,862

Fund balance - GAAP basis 3 164,612
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2007

Adult Education — Accounts for all activities related to the adult education program. The
fund ceased operations on July 1, 2006.

Real Estate Managernent — Accounts for the rental of surplus space in school buildings
for complementary programs such as child care, and for the administration of potential
future school sites,

Field Trip — Accounts for the operation of transportation services for student field trips
and external organizations.

Entrepreneurial Activities — Provides supplemental funding for the instructional program
through the sale of MCPS expertise, services and products.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Total
Nonmajor
Adult Real Estate Enterprise
Education Management Field Trip Entrepreneurial Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 3 - 5 792,294 $ 169,445 $ - $ 961,739
Accounts receivable:
Montgomery County 202,135 202,135
Other 147 641 430,072 577,713
Inventories 20,250 20,250
Total current assets - 939,935 599,517 222,385 1,761,837
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 4,458 4,458
Machinery and equipment 44,150 44,150
Total noncurrent assets - 4,458 - 44,150 48,608
Total assets - 944,393 559,517 266,535 1,810,445
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 153,722 23,819 177,541
Due to other funds 1,147,674 1,147,674
Unearned revenue 137,155 137,155
Capital lease-current 17,636 17,636
Total current liabilities - 163,722 - 1,326,284 1,480,006
Noncurrent liabilities;
Capital lease payable 18,294 18,2904
Compensated absences 54,715 41,132 116,686 212,533
Total nencurrent liabilities - 54,715 41,132 134,980 230,827
Total liabilities - 208,437 41,132 1,461,264 1,710,833
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,458 8,220 12,678
Unrestricted 731,498 558,385 (1,202,949) 86,934
Total net assets [ - $ 735,956 $ 558,385 $  (1,194,729) § 99,612
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total
Nonmajor
Adult Real Estate Enterprise
Education Management Field Trip Entrepreneurial Funds
Operating revenues:

Tuition and fees 5 - $ 2,625,031 $ 1,543,101 $ 1,436,778 $ 5,604,910

Total operating revenues - 2,626,031 1,643,101 1,436,778 5,604,910
Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages (50,559) 390,248 1,110,463 621,078 2,071,230

Contracted services 100,761 48,865 32,297 181,923

Supplies and materials 1,917 11,349 354,536 537,289 905,091

Other charges 2,422,209 115,433 168,606 2,706,248

Depreciation 1,784 17,660 19,444
Total operating expenses (48,642) 2,926,351 1,629,297 1,376,930 5,883,936
Operating income (loss) 48 642 (301,320) (86,196) 59,848 (279,026)

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income 62,044 30,492 92,536
Total nonoperating revenues - 62,044 30,492 - 92,536
Income (loss) before transfers 48,642 (238,276) (55,704) 59,848 (186,490)
Transfers out (35,226) (62,044) (30,492) (127,762)

Change in net assets 13,418 (301,320) (86,196) 59,848 (314,252)
Total net assets - beginning (13,416} 1,037,276 644,581 (1,254,577) 413,864
Total net assets - ending $ - $ 735,956 $ 558,385 $  (1,194729) % 99,612
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total
Nonmajor
Adult Real Estate Enterprise
Education Management Field Trip Entrepreneurial Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 261833 § 2,518,234 $ 1,509,134 $ 1,565554 § 5,854,755
Payments to suppliers (226,607) 9,762 (403,401} {755,837) (1,376,083)
Payments to employees - (420,443) (1,188,822) (613,110) (2.222,375)
Payments for assessments made by other funds - (65,101) (31,621) (168,432) (265,154)
Payments for other operating expenses - (2,322,482) - _(11.172) (2,333,654)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 35,226 (280,030) {114,710) 17,003 (342,511}
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers to other funds (35,226) (62,044) 30,492 (127,762)
Net cash (used for) noncapital financing activities (35,226) (62,044) (30,492) - (127,762)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on capital leases (17,003} (17.003)
Net cash (used for) capital and
related financing activities - - - (17.003) (17.003)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 62,044 30,492 92,536
Net cash provided by investing activities - 62,044 30,492 - 92,536
Net (decrease) in cash and cash squivalents - (280,030) (114,710) - (394,740)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning - 1,072,324 284,155 - 1,356,479
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ - $ 792,294 3 189,445 $ - $ 961,739
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 3 48642 % (301,320) % (86,196) 3 59,848 § {279,026)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,784 17,660 19,444
Effects of changes in assels and liabilities:
Receivables 283,663 (106,797) (33,967) 95,066 237,965
Inventories 41,207 41,207
Prepaids - 88,775 88,775
Accounts payable (15,288) 33,096 (20,584) (2,776)
Due to other funds (209,402) (205,766) (415,168)
Deferred revenue (21,830) 33,710 11,880
Compensated absences (50,559) 4,432 5,453 (4,138) (44,812)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 3 35226 § (280,030) $ (114710) § 17,003 §  (342,511)
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AGENCY FUNDS
Individual Fund Financial Statements

June 30, 2007

Agency funds are used to account for assets held as an agent for organizations or other
governmental units. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do
not involve measurement of results of operations. The Agency Funds account for
independent activity funds held by elementary and secondary schools for student groups.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES iN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Balance Balance
June 30,2006 Additions Deductions June 30,2007
Assets

Cash and investments $ 13,815,754 $ 36,142,678 $ 35,707,765 $ 14,250,667
Accounts receivable 1,624,599 1,831,262 1,624,599 1,831,262
Inventories 288,845 275,463 288,845 275,463
Total assets $ 15,729,198 $  38,249403 $ 37.621,209 $ 16,357,392

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,742,960 $ 1,795,524 $ 1,742,960 $ 1,795,524
Due to student groups 13,986,238 36,453,879 35,878,249 14,561,868
Total liabilities $ 15,729,198 $ 38,249,403 $ 37,621,209 $ 16,357,392
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INTENTIONALLY BILANK
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of MCPS’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about MCPS’ overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 73-80
These schedules provide trend information to help the reader understand how
MCPS' financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 81-87
Since MCPS revenues are primarily provided by Montgomery County, these
schedules on the county's revenue sources are relevant to an understanding of
Montgomery County's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 88-96
Since MCPS construction funding is primarily provided by Montgomery County,
these schedules of the county’s debt capacity assist the reader in assessing the
affordability of Montgomery County’s current levels of outstanding debt and
Montgomery County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 97-98
Details found in these schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to aid
the reader in understanding the environment within which MCPS’ financial activities
take place.

Operating Information 99-102
These schedules contain select operating indicators to help the reader understand
how the information in MCPS' financial report relates to the services MCPS provides
and the activities it performs.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year

2002 2003

2004

2005

Governmental Activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government:
Invested in capital assets,nat of related debt
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets

©

(49,845,395) (80,455,530)

1,181,888,032 $ 1,224,194,974 § 1,265,348,107 §

(90,516,500)

1,347,324,600
(92,864,100)

&

1,132,042,637 $ 1,143739,444 $ 1,174,831,607 $

1,254,460,500

$ 5,629,503 $ 5,137,266 § 4,829,951 $ 5,182,162
(581,616) (1,626,627) {2,850,401) (2,755,479)

$ 5,047,887 $ 3,510,639 % 1,979,550 $ 2,426,683
$ 1,187,517,535 $ 1,229,332,240 $ 1,270,178,058 § 1,352,506,762
(50,427,011) (82,082,157) (93,366,901) (95,619,579)

$ 1,137,090,524 $ 1,147,250,083 $ 1,176,811,157 $ 1,256,887,183

2006 2007

Governmental Activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government:
Invested in capital assets,net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets

Note:

$ 1,509,775,923 $ 1,635,087,567
(96,127,805) (85,448,126)
1,413,648118 $ 1,549,639, 441

«

$ 5,052,458 $ 5,215,924
(3,354,942) (3,628,772)
$ 1,697,516 $ 1,587,152

“

1,514,828,381 S 1,640,303,491
(99,482,747) (89,076,898)
$ 1415345634 $ 1,551,226,593

Information prior to FY 2002 is not available, due to the FY 2002 implementation of GASB 34.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Expenses
Governmental activities
Instruction:
Regular instruction $ 871,885,283 $ 822,271,680 $ 983,832,228 $ 1,038,043,643
Special education 193,069,034 213,237,600 226,446,611 247,338,455
Schoal administration 113,093,534 123,298,343 126,636,268 135,691,110
Student personnel services 7,535,210 8,160,848 11,411,475 12,226,245
Health services 46,267 107,432 36,994 39,433
Total instruction 1,185,629,328 1,267,075,803 1,348,363,576 1,433,338,886
Support services:
Student transporiation 70,489,355 72,604,228 80,078,067 91,056,536
Qperation of plant 97,192,268 99,932,632 102,880,452 109,813,171
Maintgnance of plant 45,531,248 40,384,443 48,730,155 47,584,397
Admirustration 41,111,824 47,359,900 37,010,469 39,156,106
Community services 1,467,008 1,584,350 1,641,493 1,625,698
Interest on capital leases
Total support services 255,801,702 261,865,853 270,340,636 289,035,908
Total government activities expenses 1,441,431,030 1,528,941,756 1,618,704,212 1,722,374,7%4
Business-type activities
Food services 35,363,644 35,681,700 37,426,902 39,511,622
Adult education 3,823,273 4,007,829 4,110,281 1,893,599
Real estate management 1,282,137 1,586,720 1,482,541 1,537,420
Field tnps 1,402,789 1,205,565 1,246,915 1,355,538
Entrepreneunal activilies 857,174 1,062,282 1,211,760 1,316,459
Total business-type activities expenses 42,738,017 43,544,096 45,478,399 45,614,638
Total pnmary government expenses $ 1,484,170,047 $ 1,572,485,852 5 1,664,182,611 $ 1,767,989,432
Program Revenue
Governmental activities
Instruction:
Regular instruction $ 82,256,178 $ 90165424  § 65,420,215 3 67,603,299
Special education 18,293,875 23,313,058 26,501,262 29,271,325
School administration 4,461,631 5,201,183 5,218,772 3,495,396
Student personnal services 116,588 162,436 622,527 593,721
Health servicas - 96,782 - -
Total instruction 105,128,370 118,938,881 97,762,776 100,963,741
Support services:
Student transportation 568,707 885,539 1,149,902 775,691
QOperation of plant 9,383.177 5,817.414 5,014,653 4,916,991
Maintenance of plant 10,993,352 10,321,971 17,993,911 15,931,064
Administration 5,879,270 5,359,630 1,659,121 1,811,489
Community services 1,290,660 1,297,602 1,325,721 1,282,747
Total suppor services 27,915,166 23,682,156 27,143,308 24,717,882
Total government activities program revenues 133,043,536 142,621,037 124,906.084 125,681,723
Business-lype activities
Food services 34,262,117 34,114,943 36,230,717 36,056,101
Adult education 3,725,954 4,097,427 3,806,206 2,063,253
Real estate management 1,528,157 1,451,483 1,724,390 2,018,558
Field trips 1,359,468 1,226,062 1,318,661 1,547,518
Entrapreneurial activities 791,668 934,043 786,070 1,023,446
Total busingss-type activities program revenues 41,867,665 41,823,964 43,866,044 45,708,877
Total pnmary government program revenues $ 174,711,201 3 184,445,001 3 168,772,128  § 171,391,600
Net (expense)/revenue
Governmental activities (1,308,387,494) (1,386,320,719) (1,493,798,128) (1,596,693,071)
Business-type activities {1,071,352) (1,720,132) (1.612,355) 95,239
(1,309,458,846) (1,388,040,851) (1,495,410,483) (1,596,597,832)
Generat Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Intergovernmental:
Montgomery County $ 1113445525 $  1,108.394,374 §  1,183,680,350 $  1,314,971,697
State of Maryland 250,442,972 288,603,570 340,846,285 361,020,873
Federal govermment 218,319 296,773 262,516 88,274
Investment Earmungs 326.041 146,555 76,537 155,210
Other revenue 219.607 562,402 8,019 70,671
Transfers 16,332 13,852 16,584 15,339
Total government activities 1,373,668,796 1,398,017,526 1,524,890,291 1,676,321,964
Businass-type activities
Investment Eamings 298,960 196,738 97,850 367,233
Other revenue - - - -
Transfers (16,332) (13.852) (16.584) {15,339}
Total business-type activities 282,628 182,884 81,266 351,894
Total primary government § 1373851424 § 1398200410 § 1524971557 $ 1,676,673,858
Change in Net Assets
Governmental aclivities 65,281,302 11,696,807 31,092,163 79.628,893
Business-type activities (788,724} (1.537.248) (1,531,089) 447,133
Total pamary government 3 64,492,578 $ 10,158,559 & 29,561,074 3 80,076,026

Note: Information prior to FY 200215 not available, due to the FY 2002 implemantation of GASB 34,
74



2006

2007

$  1,088,583,014 1,160,855,780
266,912,970 293,576,065
146,798,786 160,163,136
13,418.179 13,944,662
42,357 53,540
1,515,758,306 1,628,593,193
96,768,183 100,930,995
120,228,320 130,303,214
48,872,504 55,832,785
54,688,573 63,053,976
2,110,374 2,176,910
1,372,132 1,742,075
374,040,176 354,039,956
1,839,798,452 1.682,633.148
40,757,291 42,161,738
1,516,881 (48.,642)
2,102,497 2,926,351
1,579,472 1,629,297
1.266.811 1,378,930
47,222,952 48,045,674

$  1,887,021434 2,030.678,822
$ 60,734,138 71,138,709
27,405,520 26,927,739
3,619,197 3,731,020
1,055,541 1,095,801
92,814,396 102,893,269
1,101,741 603,479
7,512,643 6,157,844
15,186,848 19,447,697
9,332,129 10,026,551
1,763,601 1,846,277
35,496,962 38,081,848
128,311,358 140,975,117
38,997,786 41,462,534

1,614,777 -

2,212,736 2,625,031
1,491,097 1,543,101
1,461,574 1,436,778
45,777,970 47,067 444

3 174,089,328 188,042,561
(1.711,487,124) {1,841,658,031)
(1,444,082) (978,230}
(1.712.932.106) (1.842,636,261)
$  1,457,150,730 1,507,402,033
411,828,686 468,650,022
1,027,578 539,841
632,532 920,696

35,216 127,762
1,870,674,742 1,977.646,354
751,031 905,628
(35,218) (127,762}
715,815 867,866

§_ 1.871,390.557 1,878.517.220
158,187,618 135,891,323
(723,167) {110,364)

B 158,458,451 135,880,959
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
General Fund:
Reserved 12,327,531 § 12,644,216 $ 10,900,430 $ 11,221,140 $ 12,636,487
Unreserved ~ (6,067,530) (5,308,716) (4,360,507) (4,651,246) 5,447,168
Total general fund 6,260,001 $ 7,335,500 $ 6,539,923 $ 6,569,894 $ 17,983,655
All other governmental funds
Reserved - $ - % - $ 41,510 § 82,777
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds - - - 16,294 17,115
Capital projects funds - - - (7,602,793) (7,768,903)
Total all other governmental funds - 8 - 3 - $ (7,544,989) $ (7,669,011)
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
General Fund:
Reserved 10,086,228 $ 11,379,515 % 13,197,236 $ 21,089,545 § 17,240,840
Unreserved (5,625,651) (171,197) 3,268,757 (3,047,043) 4,879,365
Total general fund 4,460,577 $ 11,208,318 $ 16,460,993 $ 18,942,502 § 22,120,205
All other governmental funds
Reserved 5,436 $ 6913 § 5,053 § 3473 $ 741,649
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 82,633 85,935 87,033 91,238 146,750
Capital projects funds (8,133,947 {10,802,854) (12,604,232) (13,472,262) (14,392,596)

Total all other governmental funds

(8,045,878) $ (10,710,008) $

{12,512,146) $ (13,377,551) $

(13,504,197)
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

Revenues
Intergovernmental:
Montgomery County
State of Maryland
Federal Government
Other
Total Revenue

Expenditures

Current:
Administration
Mid-level administration
Instructional salaries and wages

Instructional textbooks and supplies

Other instructional costs
Special education
Student personnel services
Health services
Student transportation
Operation of plant
Maintenance of plant
Fixed charges
Community services
Debt service:
Capital lease principal
Capital lease interest
Capital outlay

Excess of Revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources({uses)
Capital lease financing

$ 851,421,873
262,570,216
23,723,869
3,805,318

$ 903,618,593
262,852,213
26,854,697
3,757,220

$ 955,247,100
269,819,680
33,724,378
4,899,686

$1,041,378,917
297,395,004
36,547,569
6,387,329

1,141,521,276

1,197,082,723

1,263,690,844

1,381,708,819

26,064,353
56,777,290
423,611,283
17,545,315
12,228,543
111,330,263
3,654,705
20,481
45,471,730
57,858,587
23,316,282
239,330,320
619,727

5,516,613
532,798
121,980,892

28,140,149
65,408,765
449,914,787
21,286,541
20,461,729
120,667,222
4,073,102
28,978
47,843,343
60,481,975
25,085,800
241,235,425
655,148

5,772,275
847,120
118,576,313

32,477,440
73,554,442
484,167,089
23,980,877
12,647,927
129,606,867
4,427,513
35,889
50,266,568
64,883,944
24,077,892
248,363,181
742,768

6,974,098
958,318
117,047,191

32,279,103
81,091,469
544,038,808
23,841,371
13,344,517
141,404,178
5,123,414
37,938
55,606,074
67,824,772
24,835,900
264,617,039
986,926

8,743,607
1,136,580
136,115,527

1,145,859,182

1,210,478,672

1,274,212,004

1,401,027,223

Technology loans from Montgomery County

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources(uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures

(4,337,906) (13,395,949) (10,521,160) (19,318,404)
7,791,983 13,614,110 8,558,368 11,401,958
361,086 547,066 22,500

648,459 498,252 620,149 378,928
8,440,442 14,471,448 9,725,583 11,803,386

$ 4102536 $ 1075499 § (795,577) $  (7.515,018)
0.6% 0.6% 0.7% 0.8%
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2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

$1,148,280,914 1,137,658,192 $1,233,511,048 $1,356,035517 $ 1498,345349 $ 1,558,647,046
305,836,841 339,814,082 350,931,179 366,552,766 417,013,817 474,951,016
43,866,588 56,379,262 59,737,638 70,605,126 74,573,378 75,177,789
4,332,529 4,827,458 4,970,961 8,194,694 8,999,000 9,547,103
1,502,316,072 1,538,578,994  1,649,150,826 __ 1,801,388,103 1,098,931,544 2,118,322,954
28,106,692 27,666,368 26,965,317 28,439,926 36,625,851 43,163,115
86,442,046 93,633,242 96,088,892 101,729,773 109,442,018 118,650,653
594,976,886 635,877,265 654,152,515 686,486,182 719,934,184 760,940,050
25,004,764 25,599,461 25,646,985 28,751,450 33,245,147 36,680,260
19,113,591 13,014,528 13,133,928 22,110,271 16,855,159 18,687,106
156,739,680 170,576,458 178,834,273 193,353,038 207,149,010 227,023,151
5,814,326 6,227,216 8,623,619 9,111,032 9,936,670 10,264,691
37,150 104,058 32,474 34,127 36,530 44,821
58,249,923 56,900,115 59,958,528 71,323,679 79,509,617 81,298,925
73,460,791 77,846,381 80,456,510 85,739,412 92,411,740 102,598,137
24,929,368 25,833,275 25,714,753 26,776,709 28,718,901 30,815,334
272,754,398 305,913,265 348,990,115 388,327,283 419,075,926 463,825,658
1,246,430 1,324,417 1,360,072 1,326,568 1,731,259 1,750,520
11,358,196 11,841,404 15,124,117 19,300,633 22,597,421 23,997,477
1,801,781 1,027,855 1,324,991 1,262,669 1,372,132 1,742,075
148,002,723 113,557,576 128,053,894 159,336,986 244,402,835 218,839,987
1,508,028,745 1,566,943,384 _ 1,662,460,983 __ 1,823,409,738 2,023,044,400 2,140,321,960
{5,711,773) (28,364,390) (13,310,157) (22,021,635) (24,112,856) (21,999,006)
16,377,140 13,447,873 16,783,521 25,456,831 25,693,744 24,922,301
85,857 12,836
538,515 13,852 16,584 15,339 35,216 127,762
629,884 593,755
17,001,512 14,104,445 17,393,860 25,472,170 25,728,960 25,050,063
$ 11,289,739 (14,259,945) $ 4083703 $  3,450535 $ 1,616,104 $ 3,051,057
1.0% 0.8% 1.1% 1.3% 1.4% 1.4%
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
MONTGOMERY COUNTY AND BOARD OF EDUCATION SELF-INSURANCE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 *

Operating revenues;

Contributions by cther agencies $ 34,315,223
Contributions by the Board of Education 13,783,860
Total Operating Revenues 48,099,083

Operating expenses:

Self-insurance losses, net of recoveries 28,353,815
Other costs at risk 4,270,778
Commercial insurance 2,774,118
Other operating expenses 2,758,962
Total Operating Expenses 38,157,674
Operating (loss) 9,941,409
Nonoperating income :
Interest on investments 4,782,807
Other revenue 39,896
Total nonoperating income 4,822,703
Net (loss)/Change in retained sarnings 14,764,112
Retained earnings (deficit), Beginning (895,955)
Retained earnings (deficit), Ending $ 13,868,157

Notes:
*  Date of the most current available information.

Source: Montgomery County, Maryland FY 2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REVENUE CAPACITY PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS*

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Tax Levy Collected within the
Total Original  Adjustments in Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date

Fiscal Levy for Subsequent Total Adjusted Percentage of Subsequent Percentage of
Year Fiscal Year Years (1) Levy Amount (2) Original Levy Years (2) Amount Adjusted Levy
1998 § 740,356,969 § - % 740,356,969 § 731,962,325 98.87 $ 44,310 $ 732,006,635 98.87 %
1969 738,861,799 - 738,861,799 731,482,875 99.00 187,647 731,670,522 99.03
2000 762,239,449 1,376 762,240,825 754,198,902 98.95 (1,174,064) 753,024,838 98.79
2001 784,285,708 (7,35T) 784,278,351 777,057,635 99.08 (1,834,770) 775,222,885 98.85
2002 821,038,153 8,188 821,046,341 805,329,587 98.09 (2,844,052) 802,485,535 97.74
2003 867,011,819 (42,478) 866,969,341 861,862,819 99.41 (3,696,141) 858,166,678 98.98
2004 927,789,542 212,022 928,001,564 024,992,688 99.70 1,942,438 926,935,126 99.89
2005 1,006,556,130 888,244 1,007.444,374 1,005,935,155 99.94 (1,631,963)  1,004,303,192 99.69
2006 1,032,231,333 (914,845) 1,031,316,488 1,031,967,300 99.97 (2,405,488) 1,029,562,312 99.83
2007 1,087,613,905 - 1,087,613,905 1,081,566,118 99.44 - 1,081,566,118 99.44
NOTES:

* This table includes data for all property taxes billed applicable to all funds for Montgomery County, Maryland to include General, Special Revenue,
Debt Service, and Enterprise Funds. Property taxes billed for the State of Maryland, various municipalities and development districts, the
Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission, and the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, are excluded.

(1) Adjustment data was available and is reported in this schedule beginning with adjustrnents processed in FYO03.
(2) Amounts represent collections received, including overpayments, net of refunds made.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MAR YLAND
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Real Property (1)
Residential (2) Commercial/Other Total Total

Fiscal Assessed Estimated A d Estimated A d Estimated Direct

Year Value Market Value Value Market Value Value Market Value Tax Rate (4)

1998  $20725,567,731 $52,656.422,083  $ 6549073404  § 16,638,906,004  $27,274,641,135  $69,295,328,087 § 2.560

1999 21215428694 54,342,798,907 6,690,651,302 17,137 938,788 27.906,079,996 71,480,737,695 2.540

2000 21,704,462 278 56,699,222,252 6,970,091,543 18,208,180,624 28,674,553,821 74,807 402,876 2.514

2001  22,267,739,672 59,348,986,333 7,381,273.206 19,672,903,001 29,649,012,878 79,021,889,334 2.513

2002 57,865,511,378 62,829,002,582 19,709,436,172 21,400,039,275 77,574,947 530 84,229.041,857 1.005

2003 61,732,348,676 69.991,325,030 20,674,989,155 23,441,030,787 82,407,337 831 93.432,355,817 1.004

2004 67,348,233,048 74,009,047 305 21914 772,219 24,082,167,274 89,263,005,267 98,091,214,579 1.005

2005 74,808,909,028 80,181,038 615 23.472.815,695 25,158.430,541 98,281724,723  105,339.469,156 0.994

2006 84762,150,340 90,946,513,240 25,767,098.776 27,647,101,691 110,529,249.116 118,593,614,931 0.952

2007 96,569,026,913  101,119,399.908 29,141,749,205 30,514,920,634 125,710,776,118 131,634,320,542 0.904

Ratio of
Personal Property (3) Real (1) and Personal Property Total Total Assessed
Business Public Utility Total to Total

Fiscal Operating Domestie Direct Assessed Estimated Estimated
Year Individuals Corporations Property Shares Total Tax Rate (4) Value Actual Value Actual Value
1998 $ 96721710 § 1,885477,810 § 1,503,028,070 § 169223380 § 3,654450970 § 2.545 $30929,092,105 § 72949,779,057 42.40
1999 96,677 815 1,904.977.610 1,431,418,620 325,472,510 3,758,546,555 2.524 31,664,626,551 75,239,284,250 42.09
2000 92,953,790 2,125,024,140 1,250,853,220 410,469,840 3,879,302,990 2.502 32,553,856.,811 78,786,705,866 4132
2001 93,023 460 2,261,403 430 1,270,848.870 452,570,330 4,077,848,090 2.500 33,726,860,968 83,009,737.424 40.59
2002 99,954,320 2,486,081,540 1,169,749,990 445,558,740 4,201 344 590 2.495 81.776,292,140 88,430,386,447 92.48
2003 85,622,460 2421490420 1,187,075,.200 533,666,320 4,227 854 400 2494  86,635,192,231 97,660,210,217 88.71
2004 83,269,110 2,272,890,000 1.116,419,190 491,223,310 ,963,801,610 2498 93226806877 102,055,016,189 9135
2005 45.777,000 2,290,059,500 1,097,481,440 469,294,170 3,902,612,110 2474 102,184.336,833 109,242,081,266 93.54
2006 39,858,300 2,275916,200 1,046,842.820 469,011,910 3,831,629,230 2367  114,360,878,346 122425244161 93.41
2007 36,342,680 2,353,070,220 1,070,305,710 489,230,940 3,948,949,550 2242 129,659,725,668 135,583,270,092 95.63

NOTES:

* Bxempt and nontaxable property are not included in this table.

* The following classes of property are not taxed: 1) personal property not used in a trade, business, or profession, and 2) business inventories.

# Intangible personal property is exempt from taxation except in two instances: shares of stock in certain domestic utilities and oil pipeline corporations (shown above) and intangible personal
property of corporations under a contract with the State, granted charter exemptions from property taxation.

* FProperty owned by the Federal government, the State, or a subdivision or agency of cither, is cxempt. Also exempt are real and personal property used for religious, educational, or charitable
purposes. Specific exemptions invelve historical property, societies and musenms, conservation property, cemetexics, certain fratemnal and service organizations, continuing care facilities
for the aged, nonprofit housing property, and dwelling houses of disabled veterans and blind persons.

(1) Fiscal year 2002 was the first year that all real property in the State of Maryland was assessed at 100 pezcent of full assessed value; prior to 2002, real property was assessed at
40 percent of full assessed value. Real property tax rates wete changed in fiscal year 2002 to reflect this change in methodelogy.
(2) Residential real property includes single-family homes, townhouses, and condomininms but excludes apartment dwellings which ace included under the Commercial/Other category.
(3) For personal property, the assessed value and estimated actual value are the same.
(4) See "Real and Personal Property Tax Rates-County Direct Rate" for real and personal property direct tax rates.

Source: State of Maryland, Department of Assessments and Taxation.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REAIL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX RATES - COUNTY DIRECT RATE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
County-wide Substantially County-wide (1)
County M-NCPPC (2) County M-NCPPC (2) Total
Fire Advance Prorata  County
Tax  Transit Land Storm  Regional Metropolitan Tax Direct

County District District Acquisition  Subtotal Recreation Drainage District District Rate Rate (4)

Real Property:

1998 $§ 1962 § .262 § .091 3 .004 §2319 § .054 $ .01 $ .061 $.153 § .241 $ 2.560
1999 1.923 263 102 .004 2.292 062 .01 .061 153 .248 2.540
2000 1.863 .290 .102 .003 2.258 .067 .01 .062 154 .256 2.514
2001 1.857 293 100 .Q03 2253 .069 01 .060 160 .260 2.513
2002 (3) 41 .10% 050 001 901 .027 2003 .024 066 104 1.005
2003 754 117 .038 .001 910 020 .003 023 .063 094 1.004
2004 51 118 .044 .001 914 022 .003 021 059 091 1.005
2005 734 123 .044 .001 902 025 .003 020 059 092 .994
2006 679 134 .042 .001 856 025 .003 .022 .061 .096 952
2007 624 134 .053 .003 814 024 .003 .020 057 .090 .904

Personal Property:

1998 $ 1962 § .262 § .091 $ .004 $2319 §$ .054 $ o1 $ .061 $.153 § .226 § 2.545
1999 1.923 263 102 004 2.292 062 01 .061 .153 232 2524
2000 1.863 290 102 .003 2.258 067 01 .062 154 244 2.502
2001 1.857 .293 .100 .003 2.253 069 01 .060 160 247 2.500
2002 1.852 273 125 002 2.252 .068 .007 .059 .165 243 2.495
2003 1.885 .293 093 .003 2.276 .050 .008 .058 158 218 2.494
2004 1.878 .295 110 003 2.286 055 008 053 148 212 2.498
2005 1.835 -308 110 .003 2.256 .063 .008 .050 148 218 2.474
2006 1.698 335 .105 003 2.141 .063 .008 .055 .153 .226 2.367
2007 1.560 335 133 .001 2.029 .060 .008 .050 .143 213 2.242
NOTES:

* The charter requires that revenues from real property taxes cannot exceed last year's revenues adjusted by the rate of inflation excluding revenues
from new construction. The Council can adopt tax rates that exceed this limit by a supermajority of seven out of nine councilmembers.

* No discounts are allowed.

* Taxes are levied as of July 1, are due by September 30, and become delinquent the following October 1.

* Unless homeowners elect to pay their real property taxes annually, taxes are paid on a semi-annual basis with payment due by September 30
and December 31.

* Interest and penalty at 20 percent are assessed on delinquent tax bills.

* Revised tax bills based upon certifications from the State received after September 1 may be paid within thirty days without interest.

* Delinquent taxes on real property are collected by sale. Taxes on personal property are enforced by legal action. Corporations may lose charter
for failure to pay taxes.

* Costs of tax sale, which vary, are added to tax bills. The last sale cost $25 per parcel.

* Tax sale date: second Monday in June.

* Personal property tax rates are applied to 100 percent of the property assessment.

(1) Rates classified as substantially county-wide represent those tax rates that are levied against all of the County's assessable base, except those
incorporated cities and municipalities that provide their own such service.

(2) M-NCPCC County property tax rates are included in the County's direct rate since the County Council has the power to set, modify, or
approve these tax rates for this joint venture organization.

(3) Fiscal year 2002 was the first year that all real property in the State of Maryland was assessed at 100 percent of full assessed value; prior 1o
2002, real property was assessed at 40 percent of full assessed value. Real property tax rates were changed in fiscal year 2002 to reflect this
change in methodology.

(4) County direct rate includes: County tax rates that are levied County-wide, and County tax rates levied by M-NCPPC. For County special
taxing district tax rates that are levied substantially County-wide, the direct rate includes a prorata portion of the tax rate that corresponds
to the portion of the County's assessable base against which the rate is levied. Therefore, the total County direct rate presented above is
not a mathematical sum of all the individual rates presented.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX RATES - COUNTY SPECTAL TAXING DISTRICTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Noise Abatement

Parking Lot Districts (1) Urban Districts Districts Development Districts
Fiscal Silver Montgomery  Silver Cabin West
Year Spring  Bethesda Wheaton Hills Spring Bethesda Wheaton Bradley John  Kingsview Germantown
Real Property:
1998 $ 70 § 70 $ .60 $ 60 3 075 $ 04 § 05 $ 35 % 40 8 - 8 -
1999 70 70 .60 .60 075 .04 05 40 40 - -
2000 70 70 .60 .60 075 .04 .05 45 40 - -
2001 70 70 .60 .60 075 .04 .05 45 40 285 -
2002 (2) .28 28 24 .24 030 .016 .02 .16 18 .092 -
2003 28 .28 24 24 030 016 02 16 18 .108 224
2004 28 28 24 24 .030 016 .02 .145 18 .101 213
2005 28 .28 24 24 030 016 .02 .145 175 098 192
2006 .28 28 24 24 024 016 03 .145 185 .089 187
2007 .28 .28 24 24 024 016 03 050 001 065 161
Personal Property:
1998 $ .70 $ .70 $ .60 $ 60 3 075 5 .04 3 05 $ 35 § 40 § - 8 -
1999 .70 .70 .60 .60 075 .04 05 40 40 - -
2000 .70 .70 60 60 075 04 05 45 40 - -
2001 .70 70 .60 .60 075 04 05 45 40 - -
2002 70 .70 .60 .60 075 04 05 40 45 - -
2003 .70 .70 .60 60 075 04 05 40 45 - -
2004 .70 70 .60 .60 075 04 .05 363 A38 - -
2005 0 .70 .60 .60 075 04 05 .363 438 - -
2006 70 .70 .60 60 060 04 075 .363 463 - -
2007 70 .70 .60 .60 060 04 075 125 125 - -

NOTES:

* Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.

* Personal property tax rates are applied to 100 percent of the property assessment.

* The County special taxing district rates above represent taxes that are levied against mutually exclusive specific geographic portions of the County's
assessable base. Such rates are not included in the County direct rate on Table 9-a, as they are not reflective of what all County taxpayers would pay.

(1) Parking Lot Districts also carry a tax rate of one-half the amount shown which applies to property zoned commercial but not used as such.
(2) See Note (3) on "Real and Personal Property Tax Rates-County Direct Rate".
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX RATES - OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS - CITIES AND TOWNS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Citles Towns
Fiscal Takoma Chevy Garrett Glen ‘Washington
Year Gaithersburg Rockville Park Barnesville Brookeville Chase Park Echo K ! Laytonsville Poolesville  Somerset Grove
Real Property:
1948 § 53 5 & $ 1.535 (1) § 20 § 45 $ .18 § .55 5 36 5 .50 $ .35 5 66 5 3 3 .63
1999 53 815 1.580 20 45 16 .55 36 .50 .35 .65 28 60
2000 .53 803 1.580 20 45 16 .55 .36 50 33 63 23 .60
2001 .53 805 1.605 .20 A5 A3 .50 35 .50 31 60 22 .60
2002 (2) 212 322 642 .08 20 .04 .20 .14 20 125 24 05 235
2003 212 32 660 .08 20 .037 20 14 .193 132 24 .03 235
2004 212 a2 660 .078 20 .035 .20 .14 .187 160 24 05 217
2005 212 A2 660 072 20 .033 .20 A3 170 .160 23 05 217
2006 212 322 630 063 13 .029 20 A2 155 160 221 045 202
2007 212 312 630 060 RE) .026 .19 12 147 140 200 .040 202
Personal Property:
1998 § .53 $ .82 § 1.535(1) $ 20 5 45 § a8 § .55 5 36 $ .50 $ .35 5 .66 § 31 $ .63
199% 5 815 1.580 20 43 16 55 36 56 .35 65 .28 -60
2000 .53 803 1.580 20 435 16 .55 36 .50 33 63 25 .60
2001 .53 803 1.605 20 45 13 .50 35 .50 31 .60 22 .60
2002 .53 805 1.605 .20 45 10 .50 .80 .50 31 .60 22 .60
2003 53 -805 1.605 20 45 .10 .50 .80 .50 .33 .60 22 60
2004 53 803 1.650 20 45 10 50 .80 .50 35 .60 22 .60
2005 .53 .805 1.650 20 45 g .50 .80 .50 .35 60 22 .60
2006 .53 .805 1.575 20 A5 10 1.000 .80 .50 .35 60 22 .60
2007 .53 .805 1.575 20 45 10 1.000 .80 50 35 60 22 .60
NOTES:

* Tax rates are per $10 of assessed value,

* Personal property tax rates are applied to 100 percent of the property assessment.

* Tuxes collected by the County for other fiscal units, including overlapping governments, are remitted based on actual
collections.

(1) Effective July 1, 1997, the citizens of Takoma Park, which was located parily in Montgomery County and partly

in Prince Gieorge's County, voted by referendum lo have the City focated entirely in Montgomery County.
(2) See Note (3) on “Real and Personal Property Tax Rates-Caunty Direct Rate”.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REAL AND PERSCONAL PROPERTY TAX RATES - OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS - VILLAGES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Villages
) Chevy Chevy Chevy Chevy Martin's North
Fiscal Battery Chase Chase Chase Chase Friendship Additions to Chevy
Year Park Section 3 Section 5 View Village  Drummond Heights Chevy Chase Chase Oakmont
Real Property:
1998 $ 13 $ 20 $ 04 $ 08 $ 27 $ 12 $§ .28 $ 19 §$ 13 3§ .15
1999 125 .18 - .08 25 12 28 .19 13 15
2000 125 .09 - .08 25 A2 25 .15 A3 15
2001 125 .05 - .08 .25 a2 22 .02 13 15
2002 (1) .05 02 - .03 10 048 .08 .008 052 10
2003 05 02 - .03 12 048 07 .008 .052 .10
2004 .05 .02 - 025 .14 048 .06 .008 052 .06
2005 .05 .02 - 025 .14 .048 .06 .008 .052 .06
2006 .05 .02 - .023 13 048 .05 .008 052 .06
2007 05 .02 - 023 123 .048 .04 .008 052 .06
Personal Property:
1998 $ 13 $ 20 $ 04 5 08 § 27 $ 12 $ 28 $ .19 $§ 13 5§ .15
1999 125 18 - .08 25 12 28 19 .13 .15
2000 125 .09 - .08 .25 12 25 15 .13 .15
2001 25 .05 - .08 25 A2 22 .02 13 15
2002 125 .05 - - .10 A2 .08 .008 13 .10
2003 125 .05 - - 50 12 .07 .008 13 .10
2004 125 .05 - - 50 A2 06 .008 13 .06
2005 125 .05 - - .60 A2 .06 .008 13 -
2006 125 .05 - - .60 12 .05 .008 13 .10
2007 125 .05 - - .66 A2 .04 .008 13 10

NOTES:
* Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.
* Personal property tax rates are applied to 100 percent of the property assessment.

* Taxes collected by the County for other fiscal units, including overlapping governments, are remitted based on actual collections.

(1) Sec Note (3) on "Real and Personal Property Tax Rates-County Direct Rate".
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

TEN HIGHEST COMMERCIAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Ratio:
Assessable Base Taxpayer
Real Personal Base to Total
Total Property Property Assessable Base

Potomac Electric Power Co. $ 705,060,996 6,931,466 $ 698,129,530 0.54 %
Verizon 670,608,660 30,345,000 640,263,660 0.52
Montgomery Mall 335,367,236 334,691,666 675,570 0.26
Washington Gas Light Co. 229,028,830 - 229,028,830 0.18
Chevy Chase Land Co. 213,530,560 213,530,560 - 0.16
Mirant Mid-Atlantic LLC 198,571,702 75,319,332 123,252,370 0.15
7501 Wisconsin Avenue LLC 198,508,332 198,508,332 - 0.15
Wheaton Plaza Regional Shopping Center 174,942,430 173,759,100 1,183,330 0.13
Bryabt F. Foulger Trustee 174,503,400 174,503,400 - 0.13
Camalier, Anne D et al, Trustee 172,456,415 172,456,415 - 0.13

Total $ 3,072,578,561 $1,380,045,271 $1,692,533,290 237 %

Total Assessable Base $129,659,725,668 100 %

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
Ratio:
Assessable Base Taxpayer
Real Personal Base to Total
Total Property Property Assessable Base

Potomac Electric Power Co. $ 989,635,360 $§ 23,311,090 $§ 966,324,270 323 %
Bell Atlantic - Washington D.C. Inc. 560,581,280 23,998,640 536,582,640 1.83
Washington Gas Light Company 159,973,950 6,434,100 153,539,850 0.52
Montgomery Mall 77,219,890 77,219,890 - 0.25
May Department Stores 65,742,820 24,118,440 41,624,380 0.21
International Business Machines 61,437,020 17,270,710 44,166,310 0.20
Bryabt F. Foulger Trustee 56,923,880 56,923,880 - 0.19
Marbeth Partnership 52,019,330 52,019,330 - 0.17
Wheaton Plaza Regional Shopping Center 51,550,340 51,550,340 - 0.17
Albert & R.Abramson, Et.Al 54,094,860 54,094,860 - 0.17

Total $ 2,129,178,730  $ 386,941,280  $1,742,237,450 6.94 %

Total Assessable Base $ 30,647,787,862 100 %

Source: State of Maryland Department of Assessments and Taxation
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Bonded Percentage of
Debt Outstanding (1) Estimated
Variable Rate Actual Taxable

Fiseal General Demand Value Per

Year Obling)n Bonds (2) Oblisiitions(Z) Total of Property (3) Capita (4)
1598 $ 1,057,463,054 $ - 1,057,463,054 145% § 1,248
1999 1,091,613,054 - 1,091,613,054 145 1,266
2000 1,131,833,054 - 1,131,833,054 1.44 1,288
2001 1,178,708,034 - 1,178,708,034 1.42 1,319
2002 1,242,553,054 - 1,242,553,054 1.41 1,370
2003 1,288,293,054 - 1,288,293,054 1.32 1,406
2004 1,329,778,054 - 1,329,778,054 1.30 1,443
2005 1,415,208,054 - 1,415,208,054 1.30 1,502
2006 1,493,888,054 100,000,000 1,453,888,054 1.22 1,568
2007 1,512,675,607 100,000,000 1,612,675,607 1.19 1,703
NOTES:

(1) General Bonded Debt includes all general obligation debt, regardless of
purpose or repayment source, and other bonded debt financed with general
government resources. Governmental lease reveniue bonds and business-type
revenue bonds are excluded because they are repayable from specific resources
other than general governmental resources. Other debt is excluded because it
is not in the form of bonds.
(2) General Obligation Bonds is comprised of both governmental and business-
type activities.
(3) See "Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" for estimated actual value of taxable property data.
(4) See "Demographic Statistics” for population data.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1998

1999

2000

2001

Assessed Value
Real property (1, 3)
Personal property (2)
Total Assessed Value

Legal Debt Margin

Debt Limit - Percentage of Assessable Base:
For real property at 6% (15% for 2001 and prior) (2)
For personal property at 15%

Legal Limitation for the Borrowing of Funds
and the Issuance of Bonds

Debt Applicable to Limit;
General obligation bonds
Variable Rate Demand Obligation
Bond anticipation notes
Long-term notes payable
Total Debt Applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Margin
Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage of Debt Limit

NOTES:

$ 27274,641,135

3,654,450,970

$ 27,906,079,996

3,758,546,555

$ 28,674,553,821

3,879,302,990

$ 29,649,012,878

4,077,848,090

$ 30,929,092,105

$ 31,664,626,551

$ 32,553,856,811

$ 33,726,860,968

4,091,196,170 $§ 4,185,911,999 4,301,183,073 § 4,447,351,932
548,167,646 563,781,983 581,895,449 611,677,214
4,639,363,816 4,749,693,983 4,883,078,522 5,059,029,146
1,057,463,054 1,091,613,054 1,131,833,054 1,178,708,054
150,600,000 80,000,000 160,000,000 125,000,000

- 1,753,025 1,689,553 1,625,240
1,207,463,054 1,173,366.079 1,293,522,607 1,305,333,294
3,431,900,762 3  3,576,327,904 3,589,555915 $ 3,753,695,852
74% 75% 74% 4%

(1) See (1) on "Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property”

(2) See (3) on "Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property"

(3) As a Charter County, the legal debt limit is provided by Article 254, Section 5(P), of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Prior to
June 1, 2001, the legal debt limit was 15 percent of the assessable base (real and personal property) of the County. During that time,
the assessable base for real property was 40 percent of the full assessed value. Effective June 1, 2001, real property in the State of
Maryland began being assessed at 100 percent of full assessed value instead of the previous 40 percent assesstnent method. Also

effective June 1, 2001, the section of the Code referred to above was amended in conjunction with the real property assessment

change. Under the amendment, the legal debt margin is a total of 6 percent of the assessable base (presented at 100 percent) of real
property of the County and 15 percent of the County's assessable base of personal property and operating real property,
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
77,574,947,550 $§ 82,407,337,831 89,263,005,267  § 98,281,724,723  $110,529,249,116 § 125,710,776,118

4,201,344,590 4,227,854,400 3,963,801,610 3,902,612,110 3,831,629,230 3,948,949,550
81,776,292,140  § 86,635,192,231 93,226,806,877  $102,184,336,833  $114,360,878,346 $ 129,659,725,668

4,654,496,853 4,944,440,270 5,355,780,316 § 5,896,903,483 $§ 6,631,754,947 $  7,542,646,567
630,201,689 634,178,160 594,570,242 585,391,817 574,744,385 592,342,433
5,284,608,542 5,578,618,430 5,950,350,558 6,482,295,300 7,206,499,332 8,134,989,000
1,242,553,054 1,288,293,054 1,329,778,054 1,415,208,054 139,388,054 1,512,675,607
- 100,000,000 100,000,000

125,000,000 125,000,000 150,000,000 - 100,000,000 150,000,000
1,408,951 1,341,206 1,270,924 1,198,385 - -
1,368,962,005 1,414,634,260 1,481,048,978 1,416,406,439 1,593,888,054 1,762,675,607

3,915,736,537

4,163,984,170

4,469,301,580

$ 5,065,888,861

$ 5612,611,278

$ 6,372,313,393

74%

73%

75%
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT (1)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable Debt
Overlapping Debt:
Towns, Cities, and Villages: (2, 3)
Brookeville - bank loans $ 108,000 100.00 108,000
Garrett Park - bonds 655,900 100.00 655,900
Poolesville - bonds 2,509,376 100.00 2,509,376
Rockville - bonds 37,806,036 100.00 37,806,036
Takoma Park:
Bonds 5,656,677 100.00 5,656,677
Certificates or notes 122,260 100.00 122,260
Capital leases 541,584 100.00 541,584
Component Units (2, 3):
MCPS - capital leases 45,400,158 100.00 45,400,158
Joint Venture - M-NCPPC (3, 4):
Park acquisition and development bonds 144,206,660 25.57 36,875,901
Advance land acquisition bonds 5,480,000 78.28 4,290,000
Development Districts (2):
Kingsview Village Center - bonds 2,205,000 100.00 2,205,000
West Germantown - bonds 15,450,000 100.00 15,450,000
151,620,892

Total Overlapping Debt
Montgomery County direct debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

NOTES:

1,904,769,799

$ 2,056,390,691

(1) Direct debt relating to the governmental activities of the County includes general obligation bonds, bond
anticipation notes, notes payable, lease revenue bonds, and capital leases. Overlapping debt is the debt
of other governmental entities in the County that is payable in whole or in part by taxpayers of the County.
It includes general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, mortgages payable, notes payable, commercial paper,
bond anticipation notes, certificates of participation, capital leases, and bank loans.

(2) Entities are wholly within Montgomery County.
(3) Unaudited information provided by entities.
(4) Overlapping debt percentage is based on the debt relating to the County.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
DEBT CAPACITY - PLEDGED - REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Less: Net Available Debt Service (4)
Fiscal Gross Operating Revenue for Coverage
Year Revenues (2) Expenses (3) Debt Service Principal Interest Total %
Bethesda Parking Lot District (1):
1997 $ 9,860,961 §$ 3,704,717 6,156,244 1,315,000 $ 1,381,588 $ 2,696,583 § 228.30
1998 10,473,491 4,013,533 6,459,958 1,405,000 1,313,208 2,718,208 237.66
1999 11,542,133 4,243,424 7,298,709 1,495,000 1,237,337 2,732,337 267.12
2000 11,460,424 4,400,300 7,060,124 1,585,000 1,155,112 2,740,112 257.66
2001 12,925,815 4,534,938 8,390,877 1,670,000 1,064,768 2,734,768 306.82
2002 16,445,984 4,436,394 12,009,590 1,785,000 967,908 2,752,908 436.25
2003 16,149,547 4,929,120 11,220,427 3,135,000 1,046,881 4,781,881 234.64
2004 17,228,514 5,160,881 12,067,633 3,190,000 1,509,278 4,699,278 256.80
2005 17,317,168 5,447,448 11,869,720 3,315,000 1,386,603 4,701,603 252.46
2006 18,167,711 5,959,821 12,207,890 3,430,000 1,567,391 4,997,391 244.29
Silver Spring Parking Lot District (1):
1997 $ 9,069,251 $ 5,208,487 3,860,764 1,235,000 $ 1,203,723 § 2,438,723 § 158.31
1998 9,387,880 5,403,014 3,984,866 1,300,000 1,139,503 2,439,503 163.35
1999 12,939,292 (ay 5,552,587 7,386,705 1,395,000 1,069,302 2,464,302 299.75
2000 9,526,984 6,326,478 3,200,506 1,480,000 992,578 2,472,578 129.44
2001 15,060,379 (b) 6,059,478 9,000,901 1,570,000 908,218 2,478,218 363.20
2002 9,331,496 5,752,439 3,579,057 1,650,000 817,158 2,467,158 145.07
2003 11,170,551 5,923,323 5,247,228 1,950,000 484,128 2,434,128 215.57
2004 12,815,999 5,443,131 7,372,868 2,020,000 388,388 2,408,388 306.13
2005 12,472,095 6,972,166 5,499,929 2,110,000 307,588 2,417,588 227.50
2006 13,569,363 7,753,608 5,815,755 2,180,000 244 288 2,424,288 239.90
Solid Waste Disposal (1):
1997 (5) $ - 8 - - - 8 - 3 - % - %
1998 85,622,526 74,431,661 11,190,865 1,810,000 2,481,401 4,291,401 260.77
1999 96,173,895 (c) 74,918,714 21,255,181 1,900,000 2,394,521 - 4,294,521 494.94
2000 93,198,853 75,359,998 17,838,855 1,995,000 2,299,521 4,294,521 415.39
2001 92,669,945 76,597,308 16,072,637 2,095,000 2,199,771 4,294,771 374.24
2002 80,977,037 (d) 78,748,230 2,228,807 2,205,000 2,090,831 4,295,831 51.88 (0)
2003 88,331,791 80,007,807 8,323,984 2,320,000 1,973,966 4,293,966 193.85 (6)
2004 93,065,778 88,366,006 4,699,772 2,555,000 1,456,033 4,011,033 117.17 (6)
2005 92,697,769 94,957,279 (2,259,510) 2,835,000 1,177,350 4,012,350 (56.31) (6)
2006 100,566,075 90,819,590 9,746,485 2,920,000 1,092,300 4,012,300 242.92
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
DEBT CAPACITY - PLEDGED - REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Less: Net Available Debt Service (4)

Fiscal Gross Operating Revenue for Coverage

Year Revenues (2) Expenses (3) Debt Service Principal Interest Total %

Metrorail Garage Project (1):

2003 $ 1,682,005 $ - $ 1,682,005 \) - $ 1,682,005 $ 1,682,005 100.00 %

2004 1,682,005 - 1,682,005 - 1,682,005 1,682,005 100.00

2005 3,158,382 - 3,158,382 1,350,000 1,808,382 3,158,382 100.00

2006 3,292,758 3,292,758 1,485,000 1,807,758 3,292,758 100.00

NOTES:

(1) Table includes debt that is secured by a pledge of a specific revenue stream, and is designed to reflect whether the County had
to use general (unpledged) revenues to repay debt that was intended to be self-supporting.

2) Gross revenues include non-operating investment income. Gross revenues for the parking lot district bonds include all revenues
of the district and consist primarily of parking fee charges for services, parking fines, and dedicated property taxes. Gross
revenues for the metrorail garage project lease revenue bonds include lease payments from WMATA.

3) Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.

® Debt service consists of amounts relating to revenue or lease revenue bonds; amounts relating to general obligation bonds are
excluded.

%) Data for 1997 is not readily available since prior to 1998 all Solid Waste Activities were combined in the financial statements.

(6) Since 2002, the Solid Waste Disposal Fund has been deliberately using fund net assets (not general unpledged revenues) to
fund expenditures in an attempt to reduce the accumulated fund net assets. Over each budget and cash projection period of six
years, Solid Waste Disposal Fund works toward the goal of reducing the excess cash to a point where the cash plus investments
in excess of reserve requirements is no more than $1 million. During these periods, rates are established and resulting cash and
gross revenues will increase or decrease due to the timing of operating and capital projects. At times, this may result in
negative net available revenue for debt service.

(a) Silver Spring Parking Lot District revenue increase is due to revenue received from the sale of Lot #19 to a third party in
connection with the Silver Spring revitalization project.

()} Silver Spring Parking Lot District revenue increase is due to state aid intergovernmental revenue for the purchase of land in
connection with the Silver Spring revitalization project.

(©) Solid Waste Disposal revenue increase is due primarily to a decrease in the landfill closure liability.

(d) Solid Waste Disposal revenue decrease is due to write offs of accounts receivables.
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS (PUBLIC SCHOOLS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Date of Amount of General Tax Bonds

Interest Bond -Qutstanding
Description of Bonds and Purpose of Issue Rate Issue Maturity Issued June 30, 2007
General bonded indehtedness:
Consolidated Public Improvement Refunding 275-58 7/1/1992 1993-10  § 124,229,500 $ 18,173,678
Consolidated Public Improvement 5.10-5.50 3/15/1996 1997-16 55,000,000 -
Consolidated Public improvement 5.0 -5.375 4/15/1997 1998-17 27,500,000 1,375,000
Consolidated Public Improvement Refunding 3.9 -525 1171988 2003-15 39,634,602 34,651,709
Consolidated Public Improvement 4.875 4/1/1998 1999-18 80,100,000 11,729,800
Consolidated Public Improvement 4.0 -5.0 4/1/1999 2000-19 66,200,000 13,240,000
Consolidated Public Improvement 5.0 -6.0 1/1/2000 2001-20 67,000,000 13,400,000
Consolidated Public Improvement 4.0 -50 2/1/2001 2002-21 74,978,422 22,493,527
Consolidated Public Improvement Refunding 3.6 -525 11/15/2002 2003-19 61,667,788 53,437,691
Consolidated Public Improvement 3.0 -50 2/1/2001 2003-22 76,000,000 30,400,000
Consolidated Public improvement Refunding 2.75-5.25 11/15/2002 2005-13 58,187,994 50,460,268
Consolidated Public Improvement 1.50 - 4.0 5/1/2003 2004-23 86,500,000 69,200,000
Consolidated Public Improvement Refunding 20 - 50 5/1/2003 2004-11 25,633,689 15,911,994
Consolidated Public improvement 3.0 - 50 3/15/2004 2005-24 62,800,000 53,380,000
Consolidated Public improvement Refunding 3.0 - 525 8/15/2004 2008-17 52,850,289 52,850,289
Consolidated Public Improvement 4.0 - 5.0 5/15/2005 2006-25 66,550,000 59,895,000
Consolidated Public Improvement Refunding 5.0 6/1/2005 2011-21 62,464,240 62,464,240
Consolidated Public Improvement 42 - 50 5/1/2006 2007-16 50,000,000 45,000,000
Consolidated Public Improvement Variable 6/1/2005 2017-26 64,000,000 64,000,000
Consolidated Public Improvement 5.0 3/1/2007 2008-27 149,600,000 149,600,000

Total

Note:

3 1,350,896,524

$ 821,663,296

* These general ebligation bonds issued for public purposes are liabilities of, and the debt service is paid by Montgomery County

Source: Montgomery County, Maryland Debt Service Program, Direct Debt, Issues Through June 30, 2007
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Average
Personal Civilian Registered
Calendar Income Per Capita  Labor Resident  Unemployment Number of Pupils
Year  Population (1) ($ thousands) (2) Income (3) Force(4) Employment(5) Rate (6) (Fiscal Year)(7)
1998 847,596 $ 36,586,455 § 43,168 472,944 462,620 22 % 125,035
1999 862,350 39,049,711 45,283 478,946 470,018 1.9 127,852
2000 878,545 43,575,224 49,599 489,050 476,197 2.6 130,689
2001 893,927 45,537,627 50,941 490,213 475,049 3.1 134,180
2002 906,863 47,041,902 51,873 495,669 478,377 35 136,832
2003 916,073 48,789,893 53,260 497,410 480,802 33 138,891
2004 921,631 52,221,138 56,662 497,616 481,647 32 139,203
2005 942,000 55,800,000 59,236 507,644 491,801 3.1 139,337
2006 953,000 58,900,000 61,805 521,858 508,030 2.9 139,387
2007 947,000 62,700,000 66,209 525,018 510,022 2.8 137,798
NOTES:

1

(2)

(3

@

(5

(6
Q]

Sources: Data for 1998-2005 from the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA), U.S. Department Commerce.

Source: BEA, U.S. Department of Commerce. Personal income includes money income from wages and salaries;
transfer payments such as social security and public assistance; income from rent, interest and dividends.

Data for 2003-2004 were revised by BEA and data for 2005 is a preliminary estimate from BEA.

Data for 2006-2007 are estimates derived by the Montgomergy County Department of Finance.

Per capita income is derived by dividing personal income by population.

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), U.S. Department of Labor. Civilian labor force data include all persons
in the civilian noninstitutional population classified as cither employed or unemployed and counted by place of
residence and are revised for 2002 - 2006 and estimated for 2004. Please note: BLS undertook significant
changes to the County's civilian labor force data during 2007 for calendar years 2000 through 2005.

Data for 2007 is an estimate derived by the Montgomery County Department of Finance,

Source: BLS, U.S. Department of Labor. Resident employment includes all persons who during the survey
week (a) did any work as paid employees, worked in their own business or profession or on their own farm,
or worked 15 hours or more as ynpaid workers in an enterprise operated by a member of their family, or (b) were

not working but who had jobs from which they were temporarily absent because of vacation, illness, bad weather etc.

Each employed person is counted only once, even if he or she holds more than one job and is counted by place of
residence and not by place of employment. Please note: BLS undertook significant changes to the County's
resident employment data during 2007 for calendar years 2000 through 2005. Data for 2006 is an estimate derived
by the Montgomery County Departmnet of Finance.

The unemployment rate for 2007 is the average of the unemployments rates for the first half of calendar year 2007,

Source: County Executive's Recommended FY08 Operating Budget, Office of Management and Budget
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2007 Fiscal Year 1998

Percentage of Percentage of

Total County Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 41,250 1 8.87 % 32,908 1 8.41 %
Montgomery County Public Schools 20,875 2 4.49 15,114 2 3.86
U.S. Department of Defense 14,709 3 3.16 12,448 3 3.18
Montgomery County Government 8,675 4 1.87 7,391 4 1.89
Adventist Healthcare 8,134 5 1.75 3,800 10 0.97
U.S. Department of Commerce 6,721 6 1.45 6,705 5 1.71
Giant Food Corporation 3,896 7 0.84 4,500 7 1.15
Lockheed Martin 3,832 8 0.82 * -
Marriott International, Inc. (Headquarters) 3,000 9 0.65 5,000 6 1.28
Nuclear Regulatory Commission 2,712 10 0.58 * -
Chesapeake and Potomac Telephone Company * - 4,500 7 1.15
Tracor, Inc. (Regional) * - 4,500 7 1.15

Total 113,804 2448 % 96,866 2475 %

NOTES:

* Employer is not one of the ten largest employers during the year noted.

(1) The employce numbers listed are best estimates taken during the dth quarter of FY2007 from various sources, including first-hand
research by the County's Department of Economic Development, the Montgomery County Department of Park and Planning
Research and Technology Center, CoStar Tenant, and company Internet websites.

Source: Montgomery County Department of Economic Development
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007
Governmental Activities:
Instruction:
Total enroliment 139,203 139,337 139,387 137,798
Regular students 130,852 130,801 130,444 128,511
ESOL students @ 12,200 12,905 13,200 14,718
Special education students 8,114 8,520 8,645 8,888
Cost per pupil (accrual basis) & $ 11628 § 12,361 13,199 14,388
Number of teaching stations @ 6,430 6,598 6,817 7,098
Average teacher salary @ $ 61,962 § 62,608 65,173 67,439
Student/ Teacher ratio 14:1 14:1 14:1 131
Average SAT score " 1,004 1,102 1,101 1,634
Seniors taking SAT ! 81 % 80 % 77 % 76 %
Building capacity used *'* 100 % 107 % 104 % 100 %
Support services:
Student transportation;
Number of buses 1,202 1,230 1,252 1,264
Students transported 96,000 93,845 95,962 95,711
Operation of plant:
School buildings @ 191 192 194 199
Square footage @ 18.9 millien 19.6 million 20.0 million 20.9 miltion
Number of rooms @ 6,961 7,140 7,357 7,377
Maintenance of plant:
Work orders 58,172 58,885 64,550 63,380
Average building age {years) @ * 20 21 21 22
Administration:
Payments issued 61,458 62,909 67,125 69,653
Purchased orders issued 42,621 46,843 48,343 49,609
Business-Type Activities:
Food Service:
Meals served 10.9 million 11.4 million 12,1 million 12.5 million
Free & Reduced meals 5.6 million 6.7 miilion 5.6 million 6.4 million
Real Estate Management:
Square footage under lease 98,114 84,618 104,426 103,567
Average annual rental months 11 10 11 1
Field Trip:
Number of trips run NA NA 7,224 7,392
Ttip miles NA NA 259,977 270,741
Entrepreneurial activities:
Science kits sold 3,239 3,922 4,356 12,621

Notes:
NA - Data not readily available.

Data far FY 1998 - 2003 is not readily available.

* SAT score is the average score for the previous year's graduating class.

Beginning with the Class of 2006, the SAT changed from a two-part exam totalling 1,600 to a three-part exam totalling 2,400.

# Capacity calculation for elementary schools changed from 25 students/classroom to 23, beginning with 2005.
+ Average age of school buildings from time of opening or last renovation/medernization.

Sources for 2007:

(1) FY2007 Annual Report on Qur Call to Action: Pursuit of Excellence (The Strategic Plan for the Montgomery County Public Schools)

{2) The Citizens Budget FY2008

(8) FY2008 Educational Facilities Master Plan and the Amended FY2007-2012 Capital Improvements Program
{4) The Superintendent's FY2008 Operating Budget Summary and Personnel Complement

(5) Total governmental-activities expense from the Statement of Activities divided by total enroliment

Various MCPS departments where not otherwise noted
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
1998 1999 2000 2001
Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Regular instruction:
Teachers 7,054 7,477 7,884 8,490
Other staff 1,346 1,360 1,467 1,467
Total Regular instruction 8,400 8,837 9,351 9,957
Special education:
Teachers 1,294 1,410 1,485 1,538
Other staff 674 800 896 921
Total Special education 1,968 2,210 2,381 2,459
School administration 1,233 1,288 1,336 1,383
Student personnel services 64 69 72 77
Total Instruction 11,665 12,404 13,140 13,876
Support services:
Student transportation 1,309 1,379 1,429 1,459
Operation of plant 1,095 1,125 1,163 1,189
Maintenance of plant 366 369 373 373
Administration 320 322 331 326
Total Support services 3,090 3,195 3,296 3,347
Special Revenue:
Instruction TV * 9 9 1 13
Business-Type Activities:
Food Service 437 455 487 503
Adult Education 8 8 8 7
Real Estate Management 3 3 3 4
Field Trips 3 3 3 3
Entrepreneurial activities - 3 3 5
Position Grand total 15,215 16,080 16,951 17,758

Notes:

* Instructional TV employees were reported in the General Fund under community
services prior to FY2001, when the Special Revenue fund was established.

Source:

The Superintendent's Operating Budget Summary and Personnel Compiement
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007
8,974 9,197 9,257 9,302 9,546 9,679
1,488 1,400 1,343 1,354 1,354 1,392

10,462 10,597 10,600 10,656 10,900 11,071
1,587 1,665 1,708 1,775 1,867 1,985
1,052 1,117 1,166 1,206 1,269 1,377
2,639 2,782 2,874 2,981 3,136 3,362
1,432 1,486 1,498 1,543 1,610 1,675

88 89 121 121 122 120

14,621 14,954 15,093 15,301 15,768 16,228
1,503 1,522 1,620 1,688 1,728 1,750
1,243 1,272 1,280 1,285 1,322 1,390

371 368 363 380 389 377
337 321 326 334 345 363
3,454 3,483 3,589 3,687 3,784 3,880
13 14 14 14 14 14
520 545 575 577 590 601
6 8 8 6 5 0
4 4 4 4 5 4
3 3 3 3 3 3

5 6 7 9 9 10
18,626 19,017 19,293 19,601 20,178 20,740
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE
as of June 30, 2007

Policy Period
Type of Coverage Name of Company Policy Number From To Coverage
Comprehensive General Liability Montgomery County — Board  N/A 07/01/07-07/01/08 $100,000
Comprehensive Auto Liability of Education Self-
Insurance Program
Workers' Compensation Montgomery County — Board  N/A 07/01/07-07/01/08 As required by Maryland
of Education Self- Statutes plus $100,000
Insurance Program Insurance Fund
Boiler and Machinery FM Global LP550 07/01/07-07/01/08 Extra expense
$25,000 deductible
Property All Risk Coverage FM Global LP550 07/01/07-07/01/08 Replacement costs less
$250,000 deductible per
occurrence including
Flood and Earthquake
$500,000,000 per
occurrence
Bus, Truck and Auto Fleet FM Global LP550 07/01/07-07/01/08 Same as above
Fire, Theft and Comprehensive
Commercial Crime Policy Fidelity & Deposit Co. CCP00510340 07/01/07-06/30/08 $1,000,000 per loss
Bond Coverage - all employees of Maryland $500,000 forgery/alteration
Public Official Bond Travelers 103962416 07/01/07-07/01/08 $10,000
Tackle Football for Students Mega Life & Health N/A 08/15/07-08/15/08 $100,000 medical expense
Insurance Company After 52 weeks after
accident - $2,500 death
Catastrophe/Liability for American International SRG2100883 08/01/07-08/01/08 $5,000,000 Medical
School Athletics Group expense benefit
with a $25,000
retention
Public Official Liability Montgomery County —Board ~ N/A 07/01/03-06/30/08 No limit
of Education Self-
Insurance Program
Fiduciary Liability National Union Fire 006731215 07/01/07-06/30/08 $5,000,000
Excess Liability Alliant Insurance Co. 71M2000001-071 03/01/07-07/01/08 $10,000,000

Auto and General

N/A -- Not Applicable

Source: Department of Financial Services

102

$3,000,000 retention
Self-Insurance Fund
Pays 1 $3 million






MONTGOMERY
COUNTY PUBLIC

SCHOOLS

850 Hungerford Drive
Rockville, Maryland 20850

Published by the Department of Communications for the
Office of the Chief Operating Officer, Division of the controller

0886.08L e Editorial, Graphics and Publishing Services ® 10/07 © 250





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /PageByPage
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType true
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts false
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




